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CHAIRMAN’S SPEECH 
 
 

 
 

HET RAM 
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR 

 
Dear Valued Shareholders, 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors of your Company, it is great pleasure for me to extend a very warm welcome 
to each one of you at the 14th Annual General Meeting of your Company. 
 
At RML, we consider ourselves fortunate to be significantly ahead of the curve in terms of scale and efficiency, 
a testament to our ability to respond and navigate complexities in a timely fashion. As we regain our operational 
momentum, I am certain we will be able to reach newer heights. Upon reflection, I can confidently say that in the 
past year, RML has delivered on all fronts. We were able to execute our growth strategy in a manner that created 
exponential value for all stakeholders while consistently delivering on our promises to produce stronger and more 
sustainable products. 
 
India's economy has shown resilience, with real GDP growth of 8.2% in FY 2023-24, making it the 
fastest-growing major economy globally. Led by strong manufacturing and construction activity, the Indian 
economy is poised for robust growth in FY25, reflecting resilience amidst a slowing global economic landscape. 
Structural reforms are key drivers of India's growth. Inflation has eased, supported by monetary policy actions 
and supply-side interventions. India is expected to grow at 7% in FY 2025. The development has come in the 
backdrop of notable rise in consumption prospects, especially in rural areas. With this, India continues to maintain 
its position as the fastest-growing economy among emerging markets and developing economies. 
 
The banking sector has seen improvements in earnings, governance, and balance sheets. Non-banking financial 
companies (NBFCs) also show sound performance, contributing to credit growth in the private sector.  
 
Europe slowed to just 0.4% GDP growth in 2023 and projected to expand by 0.8% in 2024. China experienced a 
5.2% growth rate in 2023 and is projected to expand by 5% in 2024. However, a protracted property crisis remains 
a major drag on growth. Global economic prospects have improved as major economies have averted a severe 
downturn, reducing inflation without raising unemployment. However, the outlook remains cautiously optimistic. 
Persistent challenges include prolonged high interest rates, debt sustainability issues, ongoing geopolitical 
tensions, and escalating climate risks, all of which continue to impede growth. 
 
Despite global challenges, the Indian economy is poised for sustained growth. We believe collective actions and 
focused measures by the government have helped overcome past challenges and will realise India's growth 
potential in the future. To summarise, the Indian economy has demonstrated resilience, supported by reforms, low 
core inflation, and a sound financial sector. Continued focus on reforms will see India emerge as a key global 
growth engine. 
 
The industry is projected to experience significant growth in the next decade. This growth is expected to be driven 
by the expansion of renewable power generation, upgrading transmission and distribution infrastructure, rising 
investments in metro railways and modernizing existing railway infrastructure, smart grid initiatives, and 
increasing manufacturing activities. Increased urbanization and commercial development are also expected to 
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stimulate investments in the real estate sector, leading to higher demand for power cables. 
 
A vital component of the rise of any industrial ecosystem is the presence of a confident and skilled workforce. 
India surpassed China in population and already has the largest and youngest working-age population globally. 
The lessons learnt from the transformations of other economies through the last few decades point to the 
importance of this demographic dividend. In the grand theatre of global economic evolution, India is not a mere 
spectator but a charismatic lead. 
 
Despite the prevailing uncertainty, our team rallied to deliver a strong operational performance, a testament to our 
well-defined strategic framework in place alongside superior execution capabilities. 
 
RML’s unrelenting focus on doing ‘Better Everyday’ has resulted not only in our superior financial performance, 
but the ability to deliver on equally important ESG targets, thus increasing shareholder value over time. Our 
ambitions are supported by a structurally positive outlook for cooper demand and pricing, driven by massive 
infrastructure outlay, controlled expansions in China and a wave of environmental restrictions that are resulting 
in capacity moderation across the world.  
 
Finally, my sincere thanks to the entire RML team who worked tirelessly to deliver the highest levels of service 
over this past year; as reflected in our performance; and continue to progress with optimism on what we can 
achieve. 
 
I look forward to your continued support as we embark on this new phase of growth - one that will not only build 
a stronger future for India but also contribute to a cleaner, greener planet for generations to come. 
 
Sd/- 
Het Ram 
Chairman & Managing Director  
DIN: 02925990 
Dated: August 29, 2024 
  



 

4 
 

NOTICE 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FOURTEEN (14TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF 
THE MEMBERS OF RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 
27, 2024 AT 01:30 P.M. THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCE (VC)/ OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS 
(OAVM) TO TRANSACT FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company and, if thought fit, to pass the 
following resolutions as ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS:  
 
Audited standalone financial statements of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.  
 
“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements of the Company including the balance sheet as 
at March 31, 2024, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date and 
the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors, thereon be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.” 
 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir (DIN: 08069170), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible offers himself for re-appointment, and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir (DIN: 08069170), who retires by rotation at this meeting and 
being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation." 
 

3. To appoint the Statutory Auditors of the Company, and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:  
 
Appointment of M/s. K A P G & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 032569N) as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, including any statutory 
re-enactment or modification thereof for the time being in force and pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. K A P G & Associates, Chartered Accountants, 
(Firm Registration No. 032569N), be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company (in place 
of M/s. Sanmarks & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 003343N) the retiring Statutory 
Auditors) and to hold office for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of 14th Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2029, on a remuneration as may 
be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Auditors plus applicable service tax and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one Director and the Company Secretary of the company, be and are hereby 
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and expedient to give effect 
to this resolution.” 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

4. Fixation of the remuneration of the Cost Auditors of the company for the FY 2024-25. 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, and on the recommendation of the Board 
of Directors, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for the payment of remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- 
plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses and on terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed to 
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between the Board of Directors and M/s Vandana Bansal & Associates, (Registration No. 100203) Cost 
Accountants, Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year commencing from April 1, 2024 till March 31, 
2025.” 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
For Rajnandini Metal Limited 

Sd/- 
Het Ram  

Chairman & Managing Director  
DIN: 02925990 

 
Dated: August 29, 2024 
Place: Bawal 
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NOTES 
 

Pursuant to Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, Circular No. 
02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, Circular No. 10/2022 dated 
December 28, 2022 and Circular No. 09/ 2023 dated September 25, 2023 and all other relevant circulars 
issued from time to time (“MCA Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 
May 12, 2020, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/ PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/167 dated 
October 7, 2023, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circulars”) and in 
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the 14th Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM Facility, which does not require physical 
presence of members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the 14th AGM shall be the Registered 
Office of the Company. Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. 
 
This notice is sent to all the members whose name appears as on August 30, 2024 in the Register of 
Members. 
 
1. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Annual Report including Notice 

of the 14th AGM of the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting is being sent only 
by email, to all the Shareholders whose email IDs are registered with the Company/ Depository Participant(s) 
for communication purposes to the Shareholders and to all other persons so entitled. Further, in terms of the 
applicable provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations read with the said Circulars issued by MCA and 
said SEBI Circular, the Annual Report including Notice of the 14th AGM of the Company will also be 
available on the website of the Company at www.rajnandinimetal.com. The Notice can also be accessed 
from the websites of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com respectively and 
the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting 
facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. In case any member is desirous of obtaining hard copy of the Annual 
Report for the financial year 2023-24 and Notice of the 14th AGM of the Company, he/ she may send request 
at cs@rajnandinimetal.com mentioning DP ID and Client ID. 
 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 
facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, 
the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through 
VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of 

the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first 
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors 
etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. AGM will be convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with MCA Circulars. 

 
6. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is 
providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. 
For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting 
votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be 
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provided by NSDL. 
 

7. Members seeking further information about the accounts are requested to write at least 7 days before the 
date of the meeting so that it may be convenient to get the information ready at the meeting. Shareholders 
who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their 
names, demat account no., email ID, mobile number at cs@rajnandinimetal.com during the period 
September 24, 2024 9:00 AM till September 26, 2024 5:00 PM. Same will be replied by the Company 
suitably. 

 
8. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details 

relating to Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto. 
 
9. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from, Friday, 

September 20, 2024 to Friday, September 27, 2024 (both days inclusive). 
 
10. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Abhishek Jain, Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-

11233), as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting at the meeting and remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

 
11. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, to their Depository Participants (DPs) pertaining to their 

name, postal address, e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), 
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as name of the bank and branch details, bank 
account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc. 

 
12. Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 

(PAN) by every participant in the Securities Market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants (DPs) with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts.  

 
13. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map 

are not annexed in this Notice. 
 
14. Pursuant to the prohibition imposed vide Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI 

and the MCA circular, no gifts/coupons shall be distributed w.r.t. the Meeting. 
 
15. In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the 
Company is providing facility to exercise votes on the items of business given in the notice through electronic 
voting system, to members holding shares as on Friday, September 20, 2024 (the “Cut-off date”) only shall 
be entitled to participate in the e-voting process through the e-voting platform provided by National 
Securities Depository Limited. The e-voting rights of the members/beneficiary owners shall be reckoned on 
the equity shares held by them as on the cut-off date.  

 
Person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes only. 
The instructions to E-voting form part of Notice. 

 
16. Members attending the meeting, through VC/ OAVM facility, who have not already cast their vote by remote 

e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting and that the members who have cast their vote by 
remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting, through VC/ OAVM facility, but shall not 
be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, September 24, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Thursday, 
September 26, 2024 at 05.00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-
off date) i.e. September 20, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in 
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date. 
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Persons who have acquired shares and become members of the Company after electronic dispatch of Notice of 
AGM but before cut-off date of September 20, 2024 may obtain their USER ID and password for e-voting from 
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. via email at mukesh@bigshareonline.com. However, if you are already registered 
with NSDL for remote e-Voting, then you can use your existing USER ID and password for casting your vote. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
 
 Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id 
in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this 
will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience. 
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Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress 
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting 
service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available 
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able 
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
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free no. 1800 22 55 33 
 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID 
 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
 
For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and 
cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need 
to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

 
c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL 
from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. 
The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 
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6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 
 
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your 
PAN, your name and your registered address. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
 
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system 
 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 
shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 
 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 
 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page. 
 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 
General Guidelines for shareholders  
 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/ JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature 
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
csabhishek2@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other 
than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority 
Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in 
their login. 
 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts 
to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password.  
 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-Voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 022 - 
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4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager, National Securities Depository Limited, 
Trade World, ‘A’ Wing, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 
– 400 013, at the designated email id – evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user 
id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 

the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@rajnandinimetal.com 
 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@rajnandinimetal.com. If 
you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual 
shareholders holding security in demat mode. 

 
3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 

password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile 
number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS 
UNDER: - 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting. 

 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

 
3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they 

will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 
UNDER: 
 
1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-

Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting 
system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against 
company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link 
for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be 
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have 
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further, Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. 
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4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
5. Shareholders, who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 

mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at  
cs@rajnandinimetal.com. Those Members who have registered themselves as a Speaker will only be allowed 
to express their views/ ask questions during the AGM.  

 
The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate, 
to ensure smooth conduct of the 14th AGM of the Company. 
  

6. Institutional Investors who are Members of the Company, are encouraged to attend and vote in the AGM 
through VC/OAVM Facility. 

 
7. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members who need 

assistance before or during the AGM and e-voting user manual for Members available on the website 
www.evoting.nsdl.com under the ‘Downloads Section’. You can also contact NSDL on toll free number 
1800-1020-990 and 1800 22 44 30 or Ms. Soni Singh, Assistant Manager, NSDL, at designated e-mail IDs: 
evoting@nsdl.co.in, who will address the grievances related to electronic voting. 
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The brief profile of Director eligible for re-appointment vide item no. 2 pursuant to Regulation 36 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 is 
as follows: 
 

Item No. 2 
Name of Director Manoj Kumar Jangir 
DIN 08069170 
Nationality Indian 
Date of Birth/Age 18-04-1979/ 45 years 
Date of first appointment 30.11.2022 
Qualification, Experience and brief 
profile 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir has done his Bachelors of Art Degree 
from University of Rajasthan. Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir has vast 

experience of more than 20 years in Business and Finance 
Management. 

Terms and conditions of appointment/ 
re-appointment 

Re-appointment upon retirement by rotation. 

Details of remuneration last drawn 
(2023-24) 

13,00,000/- 

No. of Board Meetings attended during 
the year 

7/7 

Directorship held in other listed 
companies (along with listed entities 
from which the person has resigned in 
the past three years) 

Nil 

Chairman/Member of the 
Committees(s) of Listed Companies 

Member of Audit Committee of the company. 

Number of Shares held in the 
Company 

25 equity shares 

Inter-se relationship between Directors 
and other Key Managerial Personnel 

 
NA 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 

Item No.: 3 Appointment of M/s. K A P G & Associates, Chartered Accountant as the Statutory Auditors 
 
M/s. Sanmarks & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 003343N) were appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the second term in the Annual General Meeting held on July 26, 2019 for 
five years till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. The Board of Directors place on record their 
appreciation for the services rendered by M/s. Sanmarks & Associates, Chartered Accountant.  
 
Accordingly, Board of Directors of the Company has based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at 
its meeting held on August 14, 2024  proposed the appointment of M/s. K A P G & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 032569N) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 
consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of 14th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 19th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, on a remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors. 
 
M/s. K A P G & Associates have consented to the aforesaid appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if 
made, will be in accordance with the provision of the Section 139, 141 and other relevant provisions of the Act 
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 
 
Details as required under Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 are as under: 
 
The fee proposed to be paid to M/s. K A P G & Associates towards statutory audit for financial year 2024-25 shall 
not exceed 7.50 lakhs, plus taxes and out of pocket expenses, with the authority to the Board to make revisions as 
it may deem fit for the balance term, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
 
The fee for services in the nature of statutory certifications and other permissible non-audit services will be in 
addition to the statutory audit fee as above, and will be decided by the management in consultation with the 
Statutory Auditors. The provision of such permissible non-audit services will be reviewed and approved by the 
Audit Committee. 
 
There is no material change in the proposed fee for the auditor from that paid to the outgoing auditor. 
 
The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, while recommending the appointment of M/s. K A P G & 
Associates as the Statutory Auditor of the Company, have taken into consideration, among other things, the 
credentials of the firm and partners, proven track record of the firm and eligibility criteria prescribed under the 
Act. 
 
M/s. K A P G & Associates is a firm of Chartered Accountants registered with the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("ICAI") with Registration No. 032569N. The Firm is established in 2011 by CA Karun 
Agarwal, boasting over a decade of industry experience, the firm Karun Agarwal and Associates swiftly rose to 
prominence. In 2018, a significant milestone was achieved as the firm merged with Pradeep Mangal and 
Associates, helmed by CA Pradeep Gupta, culminating in the birth of KAPG & Associates. The Firm registered 
office in Delhi. The Firm has a valid Peer Review certificate. 
 
KAPG & Associates offers a comprehensive suite of services, including Audit, Investigation, Due Diligence, 
Accounting outsourcing, Direct Taxation, Company Law Matters for both domestic and foreign entities, 
Management Consultancy, Fixed Assets Verification, Information System Audit, and FEMA compliance. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or any of their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned 
or interested, whether financially or otherwise, in this resolution. 
 
M/s. K A P G & Associates are not related to any Director of the Company. None of the Directors and/or KMP 
of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution.  
 
The Board recommends the Resolution set out at Item no. 3 of the Notice for the approval of the shareholders.  
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Item No.: 4 Fixation of remuneration of M/s Vandana Bansal & Associates, Cost Auditors 
 
M/s Vandana Bansal & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm registration No: 100203) were appointed as the Cost 
Auditors of the Company by the Board at its meeting held on August 14, 2024 for the financial year 2024-25, as 
recommended by the Audit Committee.  
 
The Board of your company thought fit to fix the remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- plus applicable taxes and out-of-
pocket expenses, subject to the approval of the members.  
 
M/s Vandana Bansal & Associates, Cost Accountants are not related to any director of the Company. None of the 
Directors and/or KMP of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the 
resolution.  
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 4 of the Notice for the approval of the 
shareholders.  

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Rajnandini Metal Limited 
Sd/- 

Het Ram  
Chairman & Managing Director  

DIN: 02925990 
Date: August 29, 2024 
Place: Bawal 
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED 

(CIN: L51109HR2010PLC040255) 
Registered Office: Plot No. 344, Sector – 3, Phase – II, IMT Bawal, Rewari, Haryana -123501 

 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 
To 
The Members, 
 
The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 14th Annual Report of the Company together with the audited 
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.  
 

1. THE STATE OF THE COMPANY AFFAIR 
 
Our Company has a manufacturing unit spread in 2 acres of land situated at Plot No. 344, Sector-3, Phase-II, IMT 
Bawal, Rewari, Haryana-123501, solely dedicated for production of Copper products. Our Company is rapidly 
growing in manufacturing of copper products. Copper is the most widely used conductor in many kinds of 
electrical wiring. Copper has the lowest resistance to the flow of electricity of all non-precious metals. With the 
use of highly sophisticated technology and imported machinery, we are a pioneer in manufacturing of high-grade 
Copper Continuous Casting Rods which does not only have a uniform high electrical conductivity but also ensures 
maximum efficiency in conducting Electrical power and signals. 
 

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 

 REVENUE 
 
The total income achieved by your Company during the FY 2023-24 was Rs. 1220.93 crores against the total 
income of Rs. 1039.05 crores achieved during last fiscal. Operating income for the current year increased to Rs. 
1212.43 crores against Rs. 1028.88 crores during last fiscal. 
 

 EXPENSES 
 
The total expenditure for the FY 2023-24 amounted to Rs. 1203.55 crores as against expenditure of Rs. 1017.93 
crores during last fiscal.  
 

 PROFIT 
 
During the FY 2023-24, your Company earned net profit after tax of Rs. 15.24 crores against the net profit after 
tax of Rs. 13.68 crore during last fiscal. 
 

 SHARE CAPITAL 
 
During FY 2023-24, your Company has not increased its Authorized Share Capital. 
 

3. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2024 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Year Ended 31.03.2023 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Revenue from operations 1,21,243 1,02,888 
Other income 850 1,017 
Profit Before Finance Cost, 
Depreciation & Amortization, Other 
Expenses and Taxation 

5,711 5,441 

Less: Finance Cost 1,138 728 
Less: Depreciation and amortization 121 119 
Less: Other Expenses 2,714 2,482 
Profit Before tax 1,738 2,112 
Less: Provision for tax   
Current Tax 240 710 
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Deferred Tax (26) 34 
Net Profit for the Year 1,524 1,368 
Less: Income Tax Paid for earlier year - - 
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 4 - 
Total Comprehensive Income 1,528 1,368 
Interim Dividend paid - 184 

 
4. DIVIDEND 

 
During the year, the Board of Directors have not declared any dividend for the period under review. 
 

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 
The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserve for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 
 

6. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 
2024. 
 

7. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir (DIN-08069170), retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, 
has offered himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir 
as Director liable to retire by rotation. The information in terms of Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been provided in this notice convening the Annual General 
Meeting.  
 
Presently, the Board of Directors of the Company comprise of the following: 
 

Sl. No. Name  Designation  
1. Mr. Het Ram  Managing Director 
2. Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir Executive Director & CFO 
3. Mr. Ashok Kalra Executive Director 
4. Mrs. Anjali Independent Director 
5. Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha Independent Director 
6. Mr. Arun Sharma Independent Director 
7. Mr. Yogender Kumar Sharma Company Secretary and Compliance officer 

 
8. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
The particulars required to be furnished under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 are set out in Annexure-1, which forms part of the report. 
 

9. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
 
During the financial year, no material changes have occurred which have affected the financial position of the 
company. 
 

10. LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 
The Company has adhered to the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, 
advances and investments which are duly accounted for & reflected in the audited financial statements (refer Note 
No. 12 to the “Notes to IND AS Financial Statements”). 
 

11. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company. Therefore, disclosure in form 
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AOC-1 is not applicable. 
 

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
All related party transactions that were entered into during the year were in the ordinary course of business and at 
arm’s length basis and were entered with the omnibus/prior approval of the Audit Committee, which were 
periodically placed before the Board for review. The details of the transactions with related party are provided in 
the company’s financial statements in accordance with the applicable provisions/ Accounting Standards. 
 
Disclosure required under Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Regulation 34(3) is given as 
under: 

 
The company has a policy on materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions, as approved by the 
Board, which is available at its website www.rajnandinimetal.com.  
 

13. STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 
M/s. Sanmarks & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 003343N) Statutory Auditors of the Company were 
appointed in the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on July 26, 2019 for a term of 5 years to hold 
office till the conclusion of 14th Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
As per Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Sanmarks & Associates have completed their term and are not eligible for re-
appointment. Based on the recommendation of Audit Committee and Board of Directors, your company seeks 
approval for the appointment of M/s. K A P G & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 032569N) as our 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 years to hold office from the conclusion of 14th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
Information about the proposed appointment as Statutory Auditor is given in the Notice of AGM, which form part 
of this Annual Report.  
 

14. COST AUDITOR 
 
Based on the recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board approved the appointment of M/s. Vandana Bansal 
& Associates, Cost Accountants, as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 at a 
remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- plus taxes and out of pocket expenses. The proposed remuneration of the Cost 
Auditors would be approved by the members in the ensuing General Meeting.  
 
In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
the cost accounts and records are being made and maintained by the Company. 
 
Cost Audit Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 has been filed with the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs within stipulated time period. 
 

15. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has an Internal Control System which is commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit reports to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of the Board. 
 
The Internal Audit Department reviews the effectiveness and efficiency of these systems and procedures to ensure 
that all assets are protected against loss and that the financial and operational information is accurate and complete 

Sl. 
No. 

Disclosures of amounts at the year end and the maximum amount of 
loans/ advances/ Investments outstanding during the year 

Details 

1. Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries by name and amount NIL 
• Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates by name and amount.  NIL 
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which 
directors are interested by name and amount. 

NIL 

2. Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary 
company, when the company has made a loan or advance in the nature of loan. 

NIL 
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in all respects. Company policies, guidelines and procedures provide for adequate checks and balances and are 
meant to ensure that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. 
 

16. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS  
 
During the year under review, none of the Auditors have reported to the Audit Committee, or to the Board, under 
section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers 
or employees. 
 

17. VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
The Company has established a vigil mechanism that enables the Directors and Employees to report genuine 
concerns. The vigil mechanism provides for (a) adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use the 
vigil mechanism; and (b) direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Company in appropriate 
or exceptional cases. Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) is available on the Company’s website 
www.rajnandinimetal.com.  
 

18. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(q) and Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, regarding employees is given in Annexure-2. 
 

19. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rules) 2014, Company had appointed M/s. Abhishek J & Co., Company 
Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The 
Secretarial Audit Report is attached as Annexure-3. 
 
The management response on the observation given by the Secretarial Auditor in the Audit Report is as- 
 

Sl.No. Observation Management Response 
 Promoters and Directors of the Company has 

executed trades in the equity shares of the Company 
and the trading plan is not approved by the 
Compliance Officer. Trading plan is also not 
submitted to the Stock Exchange. 
 

The Board of Directors in their meeting held 
on August 29, 2024 has considered and took 
on record the Secretarial Audit Report of 
2023-24 and observations given by the 
Secretarial Auditor. Board assure that such 
non-compliance will not occur in future. 

 
20. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
The company has a policy on prohibition, prevention and redressal of sexual harassment of women at workplace 
and matters connected therewith or incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained under “Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013”.  
 
The company has complied with the provision relating to constitution of Internal Complaints Redressal Committee 
under the Act. The Internal Committee composed of internal members and an external member who has extensive 
experience in the field.  
 
During the financial year 2023-24, the details of the complaints were as under 
 

Sl.No. Particulars Details 
1. Number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil 
2. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year Not Applicable 
3. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil 
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21. COMMITMENT TO QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENT  
 
Rajnandini recognizes quality and productivity as a pre-requisite for its operations and has implemented ISO 
9001:2015 standards and ISO 14001:2015 standards.  
 
Anti-pollution systems are fully installed and operational. Continuous efforts to preserve the environment are 
pursued. 
 

22. BOARD MEETINGS 
 
The details of number and dates of meetings held by the Board and its Committees, attendance of Directors and 
sitting fee/ commission/ remuneration paid to them is given separately in the attached Corporate Governance 
Report in Annexure-6. 
 

23. ANNUAL RETURN 
 
The particulars required to be furnished under Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as prescribed will be available at company’s 
website link at https://www.rajnandinimetal.com/investor. 
  

24. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD & INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 
 
In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the performance evaluation of the Board, its committees and of individual 
directors was carried out during the year under review. More details on the same are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report.  
 
The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board of Directors on March 15, 
2024 and in the evaluation, the directors who were subject to evaluation did not participate. The Board opined 
that the Independent Directors meet the criteria of persons with integrity and possess relevant expertise/ 
experience, including proficiency (where required) and fulfilling the conditions specified in the Act for 
appointment as Independent Directors and are independent of the Management. 
 

25. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy applies to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management Personnel. The policy is approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board.  
 
The policy is available on the company’s website and web link for the same is 
https://www.rajnandinimetal.com/RajnandiniMetalImage/InvestorsPdf/nomination-remuneration-policy-1.pdf. 
The policy is designed to attract, motivate and retain manpower by creating congenial work environment and 
inculcating a sense of belonging, besides offering appropriate remuneration package and superannuation benefits. 
The appointment and remuneration of Executive Directors is based on merit and seniority of person. Non- 
Executive Directors are paid sitting fee in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

26. DEPOSITS 
 
The Company has not accepted any deposit form the public during the year under review as covered the provisions 
of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Further, 
no amount on account of principal or interest on deposit was outstanding as at the end of the year under report. 
 

27. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
 
The company have not transferred any dividend to IEPF. 
 

28. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 
 
No such order has been passed by any Regulators or Courts or Tribunals. 
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29. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
The Management Discussion and Analysis report has been separately furnished in the Annual Report and forms 
a part of the Annual Report at and is attached as Annexure-4. 
 

30. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised of Mr. Arun Sharma as the Chairman and Mr. Het Ram 
and Mr. Ashok Kalra as the members. 
 
The web-link of the CSR Policy is https://www.rajnandinimetal.com/RajnandiniMetalImage/InvestorsPdf/csr-
policy-1.pdf. 
  
Report on CSR activities is given in Annexure-5 forming part of this report. 
 

31. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Audit Committee comprised of Mr. Arun Sharma as Chairman and Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha and Mr. Manoj Kumar 
Jangir as members.  
 
The details of terms of reference of the Audit Committee, member, dates of meeting held and attendance of the 
Directors are given separately in the Corporate Governance Report in Annexure-6. 
 

32. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of Mr. Arun Sharma as Chairman and Mr. Sanjeev 
Chhaudha and Mrs. Anjali as members. 
 
The details of terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, member, dates of meeting held 
and attendance of the Directors are given separately in the Corporate Governance Report in Annexure-6. 
 

33. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprised of Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha as Chairman and Mr. Het Ram & Mr. 
Arun Sharma as members. 
 
The details of terms of reference of the Committee, member, dates of meetings held and attendance of the 
Directors are given separately in the Corporate Governance Report in Annexure-6. 
 

34. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Board of Directors has adopted a risk management policy to develop and implement risk management 
procedure/ plan including their in elements of risks, if any which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the 
existence of the Company. 
 

35. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
A separate report of the Board of Directors of the Company on Corporate Governance is included in the Annual 
Report as Annexure-6. 
 

36. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION 
 
During the period under review, all Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not 
disqualified to act as an Independent Director in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Board confirms 
that the Independent Directors fulfill all the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 making them eligible to act as Independent 
Directors.  
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37. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 
 
The Business Responsibility Reporting as required by Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to your company for the financial period ended 
March 31, 2024. 
 

38. LISTING  
 
The equity shares of your Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India (NSE) Limited.  
 

39. DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES  
 
The shares of your Company are being traded in electronic form and the Company has established connectivity 
with both the depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL). As on March 31, 2024, 100% of the share capital stands dematerialized 
 

40. CODE OF CONDUCT  
 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the company have confirmed compliance with 
the Code of Conduct applicable to the directors and employees of the company and the declaration in this regard 
made by the Managing Director forms a part of this report of the directors. Code of Conduct is available on the 
company’s website www.rajnandinimetal.com. 
 

41. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
 
The certificate from M/s. Abhishek J & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries confirming compliance with the 
requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of the Annual report. 
 

42. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
The Board of Directors affirms that the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued 
by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India (SS-1 and SS-2) respectively relating to Meetings of the Board 
and its Committees which have mandatory application. 
 

43. ANNEXURES FORMING A PART OF DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
 
The Annexures referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be disclosed are annexed 
herewith and form a part of this Report: 

 
44. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT  

 
Statements in this report, describing the Company’s objectives, expectations and/or anticipations may be forward 
looking within the meaning of applicable Securities Law and Regulations.  
 
Actual results may differ materially from those stated in the statement. Important factors that could influence the 
Company’s operations include global and domestic supply and demand conditions affecting selling prices of 
finished goods, availability of inputs and their prices, changes in the Government policies, regulations, tax laws, 
economic developments within the country and outside and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.  
 

Annexure Particulars 
1 Particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 

Earnings and Outgo 
2 Particulars of Employees under Section 134(3)(q) and Section 197(12) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 
3 Secretarial Audit Report 
4 Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
5 Report on Corporate Social Responsibility  
6 Corporate Governance Report 
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The Company assumes no responsibility in respect of the forward-looking statements, which may undergo 
changes in future on the basis of subsequent developments, information or events. 
 

45. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Your Directors wish to inform members that the Audited Accounts containing Financial Statements for the 
Financial Year 2023-24 are in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. They believe that 
the Financial Statements reflect fairly, the form and substance of transactions carried out during the year and 
reasonably present the Company’s financial condition and results of operation. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013 your Directors further confirm 
as under: 
 

(i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 
(ii) That the Directors have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for the 
year for that period; 

 
(iii) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of the adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 
(iv) That the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a “going concern basis”. 
 
(v) That the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 
(vi) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

46. APPRECIATIONS  
 
Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continuous support received from the members, 
customers, suppliers, bankers, various statutory bodies of the Government of India and the Company’s employees 
at all levels. 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Director 
sd/- 

Het Ram 
DIN: 02925990 

Chairman & Managing Director 
Date: August 29, 2024 
Place: Bawal 
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ANNEXURE-1 
 

A. Conservation of Energy 
 

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy are as under- 
 
 Provision of proper air ventilation system. 

 
 All air conditioners, lights and computers are shut down after office hours (except at the time 

work commitments). 
 

 There is an optimum ratio of glass windows to utilize natural daylight and proper 
insulation/ventilation to balance temperature and reduce heat. 

 
 We have replaced ordinary LED lights with LED high beam lights, which provide better 

illumination while consuming less energy. This change not only improves the quality of lighting 
at our facilities but also contributes to a considerable reduction in our energy consumption 
expenditure. 

 
(ii) Steps undertaken by the company for utilizing alternate source of energy: 

 
The Company is using LPG Gas in the Furnace for refining the Copper. 

 
(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s: 

 
During the current financial year, no capital expenditure has been incurred on energy conservation 
equipment’s. 

 
B. Technology Absorption, Research and Development (R&D) 

 
The company has not imported any technology during the last three years. 

 
C. Research and development (R&D): Nil 

 
D. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo: Nil 
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ANNEXURE-2 
 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(q) AND SECTION 197 (12) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
 

 
* Remuneration was paid to Mr. Het Ram during the current FY was same paid as the previous FY.  
* Mrs. Anjali was appointed as the Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. March 25, 2023.  
 

Sl.No. Requirements of Rule 5(1) Details 

1. the ratio of the remuneration of each director 
to the median remuneration of the employees 
of the company for the financial year; 

Mr. Het Ram –                             840:23 

Mr. Ashok Kalra –                       314:23 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir –          130:23 

Mr. Arun Sharma -                          8:23 

Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha –                 6:23 

Mrs. Anjali -                                    3:23 

2. the percentage increase in remuneration of 
each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or 
Manager, if any, in the financial year; 

Directors   

Mr. Het Ram -                                   - 

Mr. Ashok Kalra -                             42.74% 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir -                32.11%   

Mr. Arun Sharma -                            (42.41%)  

Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha -                   (49.03%)                                             
Mrs. Anjali -                                       800.00% 

Key Managerial Personnel                                              
Mr. Yogender Kumar Sharma (CS) - 10.00%  

3. the percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the financial 
year; 

9.52 % 

4. the number of permanent employees on the 
rolls of company; 

206 employees as on 31.03.2024 

5. average percentile increase already made in 
the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial year 
and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remuneration; 

Average Salary increase of non-managerial 
employees is 10.00%. 
 
Average Salary increase of managerial employees 
(Executive Director) is 24.95%. 

6. affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the company. 

Remuneration paid during the year ended March 
31, 2024 is as per the Remuneration Policy of the 
Company. 
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INFORMATION AS PER RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 LIST 
OF TOP 10 EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN DURING THE YEAR 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name Designation Gross 
Remuneration 

Nature of 
employment, 
whether 
contractual 
or otherwise 

Experience date of 
commencement 
of 
employment; 

 the age 
of such 
employee; 

the last employment 
held by such 
employee before 
joining the 
company; 

% of 
equity 
Shares 

Relationship 
with other 
Directors 

1. Mr. Het 
Ram 

Managing 
Director 

84,00,000 Regular 21 Years 02-04-2018 44 
Promoter and 

Chairman of the 
Company 

142880315 Nil 

2. Mr. Ashok 
Kalra 

Executive 
Director 

31,47,500 Regular 4 Years 01-08-2020 27 S R Metal 
 

1500 
 

Nil 

3. 
Mr. Manoj 

Kumar 
Jangir 

Executive 
Director 

13,00,000 Regular 21 Years 02-04-2018 45  S. K. Enterprises 25 Nil 

4. Mr. 
Raghvendra 

Rolling Mill 
Operator 

9,25,000 Regular 11 Years 01-10-2021 36 Tekla Enterprises Nil Nil 

5. 
Mr. Kapil 

Kumar 
Plant Head 8,62,000 Regular 16 Years 01-12-2020 45 

Viraj Technology 
India Ltd 

Nil 
Nil 

 

6. 
Mr. 

Yogender 
Singh 

Manager 7,91,000 Regular 10 years 01-04-2022 35 Tekla Enterprises Nil Nil 

7. Mr. Ajit 
Kumar 

Rolling Mill 
Operator 

7,37,500 Regular 9 Years 01-11-2021 34 Tekla Enterprises Nil Nil 

8. 
Mr. Pankaj 

Bari 
Panel 

Operator 
6,62,500 Regular 8 Years 01-10-2021 29 Malhotra Cabel Nil Nil 

9. 
Mr. 

Vimlesh 
Kumar 

Casting 
Operator 

6,62,500 Regular 8 Years 01-11-2021 29 Tekla Enterprises Nil Nil 

10. Mr. Jagdish 
Prasad 

Casting 
Operator 

6,62,500 Regular 12 Years 01-11-2021 47 Antra Industries Ltd Nil Nil 
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ANNEXURE-3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 
{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014} 
 

To, 
The Members, 
RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED (hereinafter called Rajnandini / the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  
 
Based on my verification of the Rajnandini books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial period ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and Compliance-mechanism in place to 
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according 
to the provisions of: 
 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; N.A 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition  of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulation, 2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 

2014; N.A 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; N.A. 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, and dealing with client; 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

N.A. and  
(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; N.A. 

 
(vi) Compliances/ processes/ systems under other applicable Laws to the Company are being verified on 

the basis of periodic certificate submitted to the Board of Directors of the Company. 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to 
board and general meetings. 

 (b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation: 
 
Observations:  
 
I report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There is no change in the composition of the 
Board of Directors during the period under review.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  
 
Majority decision is carried through were captured and recorded as part of the minutes of the meeting. 
 
I further report the following observations during the review period: 
 

- Promoters and Directors of the Company had executed trades in the equity shares of the Company and 
the trading plan is not approved by the Compliance Officer. Trading plan is also not submitted to the 
Stock Exchange.  

 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines and Company is in process of reviewing & strengthening the same.   
 

For Abhishek J & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

                 
 
                                     CS Abhishek Jain 
Place: Noida                                                                 FCS No. F11233 
Date: August 28, 2024                                                            C.P No. 16592 
UDIN: F011233F001058312 
 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an integral 
part of this report.  
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“Annexure A”                                                                                                                            
To, 
The Members, 
RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records, registers is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
Responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.  The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company. 
 
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulation and happening of events etc. 
 
5. The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards are the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 
6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

For Abhishek J & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

   
 
 
                  
                                     CS Abhishek Jain 
Place: Noida                                                                 FCS No. F11233 
Date: August 28, 2024                                                            C.P No. 16592 
UDIN: F011233F001058312 
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ANNEXURE-4 
 

REPORT ON MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Global Economy 
 
As per IMF projections (IMF WEO April, 2024) Global growth, estimated at 3.2 percent in 2023, is projected to 
continue at the same pace in 2024 and 2025. The forecast for 2024 is revised up by 0.1 percentage point from the 
January 2024 World Economic Outlook (WEO) Update, and by 0.3 percentage point from the October 2023 WEO. 
The pace of expansion is low by historical standards, owing to both near-term factors, such as still-high borrowing 
costs and withdrawal of fiscal support, and longer-term effects from the COVID-19 pandemic and Russia’s 
invasion of Ukraine; weak growth in productivity; and increasing geoeconomic fragmentation. Global headline 
inflation is expected to fall from an annual average of 6.8 percent in 2023 to 5.9 percent in 2024 and 4.5 percent 
in 2025, with advanced economies returning to their inflation targets sooner than emerging market and developing 
economies. The latest forecast for global growth five years from now at 3.1% is at its lowest in decades. 
 
Risks to the global outlook are now broadly balanced. On the downside, new price spikes stemming from 
geopolitical tensions, including those from the war in Ukraine and the conflict in Gaza and Israel, could, along 
with persistent core inflation where labour markets are still tight, raise interest rate expectations and reduce asset 
prices. 
 
Indian Economy 
 
Amid a challenging global economic landscape and deteriorating geopolitical conditions, India continues to shine 
as a bright spot. It is the fifth-largest economy in the world and is poised to retain its position as the world’s 
fastest-growing major economy. Its GDP growth remained buoyant at 8.2% in FY 2023-24 as against 7.0% in FY 
2022- 23, supported by robust domestic demand, moderate inflation, a stable interest rate environment, and strong 
foreign exchange reserves. Furthermore, an accelerated pace of economic reforms and increased capital 
expenditure paved the way for construction activities and large-scale employment opportunities in the country. 
Even though India’s pace of growth is likely to slow down, it is still considered the fastest-growing economy in 
the coming years. 
 
The copper rod market is experiencing robust growth owing to the increasing demand from sectors such as power 
transmission, electronics, and telecommunications. The market is witnessing a surge in investments in 
infrastructure development projects, further fueling the demand for copper rods. Moreover, the growing emphasis 
on renewable energy sources is driving the need for copper rods in the production of solar panels and wind 
turbines. 
 
OPPORTUNITIES 
 
Indian Electrical equipment Industry is set for revival and growth in power sector. This is an opportunity for 
demand in winding wires & strips, which is one of the principal inputs to electrical machines & electronic 
equipment. It is expected that customer base will expand and new customer base will be generated. The increasing 
adoption of electric vehicles presents a significant opportunity for the copper rod market. EVs require a larger 
amount of copper rods compared to conventional vehicles, as they utilize copper extensively in their electrical 
systems. Further, various Indian government initiatives on railways, housing, smart cities, telecom and a major 
focus on the infrastructural sector will lead to a huge opportunity for the Industry. 
 
THREATS 
 
Increasing competition from domestic and foreign players could lead to margin contraction due to pricing 
pressure. Some of the larger global players are already present in India. Highly fluctuating price of copper, which 
is the principal input to the winding wire Industry, continues to be of serious concern. The rising cost of 
production, especially due to wage increase and rise in prices of other materials & services, short & stringent 
delivery schedule by customers in the background of highly volatile copper prices, Fiscal policy of government 
encouraging imports of inputs which are detrimental to Indian Electrical Industry, competition from other leading 
winding wire manufacturers, global trade barriers, a shortage of skilled local technical labor etc. continue to 
threaten the profitability of your Company.  
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OUTLOOK 
 
Global demand for refined copper is expected to increase ~2.5% in CY2024. China is expected to grow ~3.2% 
and the rest of world is expected to grow ~1.5%. Demand for refined copper in India is likely to be around 880 
KT in FY 2024-25. Tightness in the concentrate market is likely to continue for the next couple of years with 
resulting subdued Tc/Rc levels in the short to medium term. Maintenance shutdown planned by many Chinese 
smelters during Q1 FY25 may offer some short-term relief. 
 
The global Copper Rod market stood at approximately 2.1 million tonnes in 2023 and is anticipated to grow at a 
CAGR of 4.5% during the forecast period until 2034. Copper rods find diverse industrial applications owing to 
their excellent conductivity, corrosion resistance, and malleability. 
 
Domestic copper demand is driven largely by rods, which is the downstream product for the copper business. 
Company’s strategy of enhancing capacity through copper rods which will help it gain a larger market share and 
meet the growing demand for copper in the domestic market. 
 
RISKS AND CONCERNS 
 
In the winding wire business, the global demand and supply of copper and its prices plays a vital role and could 
significantly affect your Company’s turnover. Your company is fairly exposed to the domestic and global political 
and economic risks. The prices advanced on rapidly increasing demand for copper from China, India and the other 
emerging economies of Asia. Your company also continuously keeps working on getting approvals from new and 
renowned customers to increase its market share commensurate with its capacity. Intense competition in the 
market could affect our cost advantages and result in decreased turnover. Failure to complete fixed price, fixed 
time frame deliveries could result in lower revenues of the company.  
 
The business of your company could suffer if we fail to anticipate and develop new products and enhance existing 
range to keep pace with the rapid changes in the winding wire industry. Currency fluctuations could affect the 
results of operations. Your company’s manufacturing facilities are based in India. Any changes in the legal, fiscal 
and other regulatory regimes of our country could affect our performance. In the event that the Government of 
India brings about any changes in import tariffs in India and reduction or curtailment of income tax benefits 
available to some of our operations in India can pose risks to your company. It also has a wide customer base and 
changes in the legal, fiscal or regulatory regimes can also affect the competitiveness of our product and affect 
your company’s performance. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY 
 
The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business, the size and complexity 
of its operations and such internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are adequate. A 
strong culture of internal controls is pervasive throughout the Company. Regular internal audits at all locations 
are undertaken to ensure that the highest standards of internal control are maintained. The effectiveness of a 
business' internal control environment is a component of senior management performance appraisals.  
 
The primary aim of the internal control system is to manage business risks with a view to enhance shareholder 
value and safeguard the Company's assets. It provides reasonable assurance on the internal control environment 
and against material misstatement or loss. The Company has in place a robust mechanism to deal with Internal 
audit that involves having a dedicated Assurance & Control function. The Audit Committee discusses audit plans, 
findings and observations made by the internal auditors at its meetings. The findings made by the internal auditors 
are reviewed and suggestions implemented 
 
HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 
 
Training: Training to employees at all levels is provided regularly to develop the knowledge and skills. The 
management is fully committed to the development of its human resources. Your company aims at providing in 
class training to each employee. Every new recruit receives complete safety training and on the job training from 
his colleagues/supervisor. Functional and developmental training is provided from time to time to all employees 
to enhance their skills and productivity. There is an all-round support from the management to the development 
of human resources. 
 
Knowledge Management: RML has a practice of sharing experiences of one company with other group companies 
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in various fields of production/ finance/ marketing. Knowledge Management is being developed by involving and 
sharing of information on key performance parameters at all levels which results in an overall improvement. This 
has been formalized by having a daily Business Meeting which is held at all locations of the group companies 
 
Industrial Relations: Your company continues to maintain healthy and cordial industrial relations. The values and 
the culture of the group foster family feelings amongst all its employees. 
 
DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL 
PERFORMANCE 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
applicable Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India. 
 

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2024 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Year Ended 31.03.2023 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Revenue from operations 1,21,243 1,02,888 
Other income 850 1,017 

Total Income 1,22,093 1,03,905 

Expenses   
Cost of Material consumed 1,15,786 97,305 
Purchase of Stock in trade - - 
Change in inventories of Finished  goods, 
work in progress and stock-in-trade 

(69) 585 

Employee Benefit Expenses 665 574 
Finance Cost 1,138 728 
Depreciation and amortization 121 119 

Other Expenses 2,714 2,482 

Total Expenses 1,20,355 1,01,793 

Profit Before tax 1,738 2,112 
Less: Provision for tax   
Current Tax 240 710 
Deferred Tax (26) 34 
Total Tax expenses 214 744 
Net Profit for the Year 1,524 1,368 
Less: Income Tax Paid for earlier year - - 
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 4 - 
Total Comprehensive Income 1,528 1,368 

 
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS  
 
The significant changes in the key financial ratio of the Company, as compared to the previous year are as given 
below- 
 

Sl. No.  Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 Change (%) Explanations 

1. Debt Service 
Coverage 

0.32 0.47 (32.45) % Reduction in EBIDTA 
margin 

2. Trade receivables 
turnover 

42.14 32.71 28.82 % Due to increase in turnover 
as compared to trade 

receivables 

3. Trade payables 
turnover 

84.79 42.05 101.65 % Reduction in average 
creditor days 

4. Net capital turnover 
ratio 

41.91 59.63 (29.72) % Increase in inventory 

5. Return on capital 
employed (ROCE) 

18.31 25.05 (26.93) % Reduction in EBIDTA 
margin 
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ANNEXURE-5 
 

Annual Report on CSR Activities for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 
 
1) Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:  

 
(a) Company would spend not less than 2% of the average net profit of the company, calculated in accordance 
with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, made during the three immediately preceding Financial Years.  
 
(b) CSR activities shall be undertaken by the company as prescribed under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 
2013.  
 
(c) Board may decide to undertake the activities either by itself or through a registered trust or a registered society 
or a company established by the company, or its holding or subsidiary or associate company under Section 8 of 
the Act or otherwise. Company has been carrying out CSR activities mainly in the field of promoting education, 
rural area development, empowerment of weaker section, environment sustainability, sanitation, healthcare, 
vocational skills and livelihood enhancement etc. 
 
2) Composition of CSR Committee: 

 
Name of the 
Director 

Position Category Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 
attended during the 
year 

Mr. Arun Sharma Chairman Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

2 2 

Mr. Het Ram Member Executive Director 2 1 
Mr. Ashok Kalra Member Executive Director 2 2 

 
3) Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 

board are disclosed on the website of the company:  
 
Composition of CSR Committee can be accessed at 
https://www.rajnandinimetal.com/RajnandiniMetalImage/InvestorsPdf/committee-1.pdf.  
 
The Board adopted the CSR policy, which is uploaded at Company website the web link for the same is  
https://www.rajnandinimetal.com/RajnandiniMetalImage/InvestorsPdf/csr-policy-1.pdf  
 
Details of the CSR projects approved by the Board can be accessed at 
www.rajnandinimetal.com/investor.html    

 
4) Provide the executive summary along with weblink(s) of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in 

pursuance of sub rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable- Not Applicable   
 

5) (a)Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 1410.33 Lakhs 

 
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 28.21 Lakhs  

 
        (c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years: Nil  
 

        (d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil  
 
        (e) Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year (b+c+d): Rs. 28.21 Lakhs 

 
6) (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs. 28.25 

Lakhs  
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(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(c)Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c): Rs. 28.25 Lakhs 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent during the financial year: 

 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year. 
(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

section 135(5). 

 
Amount. Date of 

transfer. 
Name of the 

Fund 
Amount. Date of 

transfer. 

Rs. 28.25 Lakhs Nil NA - Nil NA 

  

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year - 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] - 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of 
the previous financial years, if any 

- 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] - 

 

7. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

 Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 

Year. 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under 
section 135 
(6) (in Rs.) 

Balance 
amount in 

unspent 
CSR 

Account 
under sub 

section 6 of 
section 135 

(In Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 

Rs.). 

Amount transferred to 
any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6), if any. 

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 

in 
succeeding 
financial 
years. (in 

Rs.) 

Deficiency 
if Any 

Name 
of the 
Fund 

Amount 
(in Rs). 

Date of 
transfer. 

1 2022-23 Nil - - Nil Nil Nil  Nil 

2 2021-22 Nil - - Nil Nil Nil  Nil 

3 2020-21 Nil - - Nil Nil Nil  Nil 

  

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through corporate social responsibility 
amount spent in financial year: Nil 

 (asset-wise details) 

(a) Details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital 
asset) - NA  
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(b) Pin Code of Property - NA  

(c) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) - NA  

(d) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset - NA  

(e) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary or the registered owner- NA  

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5): Not applicable 

  

 
Manoj Kumar Jangir 

(Director) 
DIN: 08069170 

Place: Bawal 
Date- August 29, 2024 

 
Arun Sharma 

(Chairman of the Committee) 
DIN: 09024019 

Place: Bawal 
Date- August 29, 2024 
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ANNEXURE-6 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
(Pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
In accordance with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and some of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate Governance, the report 
containing the details of corporate governance systems and processes at Rajnandini Metal Limited is as 
under: 
 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
A good corporate governance process aims to achieve balance between shareholders interest and corporate goals 
by providing long term vision of its business and establishing systems that help the board in understanding and 
monitoring risk at every stage of the corporate evolution process to enhance the trust and confidence of the 
stakeholders without compromising with laws and regulations. 
 
The Company is fully committed and determined to adopt best Corporate Governance practices & procedures in 
all its activities, policies and actions. Your Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance is to operate for the 
benefit of all its stakeholders, and to conduct its business in a transparent, ethical and fair manner. Your Company 
believes in transparency, accountability, empowerment, motivation, respect for law, fair business and good 
corporate practices. These principles have been continuously followed by the Company since its inception. Your 
Company also believes that adhering to good corporate governance norms will ultimately leads to generation of 
goodwill for Company, earning respect from society, bringing about a consistent sustainable growth and also 
generating competitive returns for the investors. Board of Directors of the Company is committed to develop an 
environment of fairness, equity and transparency in all its activities with the objective of securing long-term 
shareholder value, while at the same time respecting the rights of all stakeholders. 
 
Our Corporate Governance framework ensures that we make timely disclosures and share accurate information 
regarding our financials and performance, as well as leadership and governance of the Company. 
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

a. Composition of Board: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive Director and Non- Executive 
Independent Directors, who have in depth knowledge of the business and industry. 
 
As on March 31, 2024, the Board comprised of 6 (Six) Directors three executive Directors and three Independent 
Directors. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the 'Independence' criteria as mentioned 
under Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and also as 
mentioned under Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2024, with their attendance at the Board Meetings 
held during the year 2023-2024 and at the last Annual General Meeting is given below: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Directors 

DIN Categ
ory 

Number of 
Board 
meeting 
during the 
F.Y. 2023-24 
Director's 
Attendance 

Attendance 
at the 
A.G.M 
Held on 
September 
22, 2023 

Relationship 
with other 
Directors 

Number of 
shares and 
convertible 
instruments 
held by Non-
Executive 
Directors 

Cessation/ 
Appointment 
(if any) 

    Held Attende
d 

    

1. Mr. Het Ram 02925990 PD 7 6 Yes No Relationship - NA 

2. Mr. Manoj 
Kumar Jangir 

08069170 
ED 7 7 Yes No Relationship - NA 
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3. Mr. Ashok 
Kalra 

 
09024019 

ED 7 7 Yes No Relationship - NA 

4. Mr. Arun 
Sharma 

 
09107533 

NEI 7 7 Yes  No Relationship Nil NA 

5. Mr. Sanjeev 
Chhaudha 

 
08932721 

NEI 7 7 Yes No Relationship Nil NA 

6. Mrs. Anjali 
10096292 

NEI & 
WD 

7 7 Yes No Relationship Nil NA 

 
Present Directorship in other Companies and Committee Position (Including Rajnandini Metal Limited)- 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Number of 
Directorship held 
in Public 
Companies 
(including 
Rajnandini Metal 
Limited)* 

Directorship held in Public Companies and Committee 
Position(s) 
Name of the company Committee(s)** Position 

1. Mr. Het Ram  
 

2 

Rajnandini Metal Limited 
(PD) 
 

Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee 

Member 

Viraj Technology India 
Ltd (PD) 

Nil Nil 

2. Mr. Ashok Kalra  
 

2 

Rajnandini Metal Limited 
(ED) 

Nil Nil 

Viraj Technology India 
Ltd (NE) 

Nil Nil 

3. Mr. Manoj Kumar 
Jangir 

1 Rajnandini Metal Limited 
(ED) 

Audit Committee Member 

4. Mrs. Anjali 1 Rajnandini Metal Limited 
(NEI & WD) 

Nil Nil 

5. Mr. Sanjeev 
Chhaudha 

 
1 

Rajnandini Metal Limited 
(NEI) 

Audit Committee 
Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee 

Member 
Chairman 

6. Mr. Arun Sharma  
1 

Rajnandini Metal Limited 
(NEI) 

Audit Committee 
Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee 

Chairman 
Member 

 
*It does not include Alternate Directorship, Directorship in foreign companies, companies registered under 
Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and private limited companies.  
 
** Membership / Chairmanship of only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in all public 
limited companies (including Rajnandini Metal Limited) have been considered. 
 
***PD: Promoter Director, WD: Woman Director, ED: Executive Director, NEI: Non-Executive Independent 
Director, NA: Not Applicable NE: Non-Executive Non- Independent WD: Women Director. 
 
(b) Board Meetings: 
 
During the financial year 2023-24, the Board of Directors duly met 7 times on April 21, 2023, May 09, 2023, July 
27, 2023, August 24, 2023, October 31, 2023, December 26, 2023 and January 15, 2024. 
 
(c) Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 
 
As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company 
was held on March 15, 2024. All Independent Directors were present in the meeting. 
 



 

39 
 

(d) Familiarization Programmes imparted to Independent Directors  
 
Independent Directors of the Board are familiarized through updates on nature of industry in which the company 
operates, company’s performance and future outlook related to business, operations, expansion, strategy, budgets, 
financial statements, besides relevant regulatory updates. The web link of the Familiarization Programmes 
imparted to Independent Directors is 
https://www.rajnandinimetal.com/RajnandiniMetalImage/InvestorsPdf/familiarized-programme-for-
independent-directors-1.pdf.  
 
(e) Performance Evaluation 
 
One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the board evaluation framework. The Board works 
with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to lay down the evaluation criteria for the performance of 
executive/ non-executive/ independent directors through a peer- evaluation excluding the director being evaluated 
through a survey. Evaluation on the basis of effectiveness of the Board dynamics and relationships, information 
flow, decision-making of the directors, relationship to stakeholders, company performance, company strategy and 
the effectiveness of the whole Board. The evaluation process for the financial year 2023-24 has been completed. 
 
A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors is as under: 
 

Sl. 
No 

Name of the 
Directors 

Competencies 
Financial 
Literacy 

Industry 
experience 
& 
knowledge 

Leadership 
& 
Strategic 
Planning 

Legal & 
Governance 

Technology 
& 
Innovation 

Risk 
Management 

1. Mr. Het Ram 
√ √ √ 

 
√ √ 

2. Mr. Sanjeev 
Chhaudha 

√  √ 
  

√ 

3. Mr. Ashok 
Kalra 

√ √ √ 
 

√ √ 

4. Mr. Arun 
Sharma 

√ 
 

√ 
 

√ √ 

5. Mr. Manoj 
Kumar Jangir 

√ √ √ √ 
 

√ 

6. Mrs. Anjali 
√ 

 
√ √ 

 
√ 

 
All the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and are 
independent of the management.  
 
During the year, no Independent Director has resigned before the expiry of his tenure. 
 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEES 
 
Powers and Terms of Reference of the Committee: 
 
Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility of overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, 
auditing and reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. 
The Committee’s purpose is to oversee the accounting and financial process of the Company, the audits of the 
Company’s financial statements, the appointment, independence, performance and remuneration of the statutory 
auditors including the cost auditors and the performance of internal auditors. The terms of reference of Audit 
Committee cover the areas mentioned under Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Committee also invites such of the other Directors, Auditors as it considers appropriate to be present at the 
meeting. The Audit Committee, inter-alia, reviews the adequacy of the internal control functions, and reviews the 
Internal Audit reports including those related to Internal Control weaknesses, if any. The Audit Committee is 
provided with necessary assistance and information to carry out their functions effectively. 
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Composition, meeting and attendance: 
 
Audit Committee comprised of three (3) directors as on March 31, 2024 out of which two were non-executive 
(Independent) Directors and one was Executive Director having financial management expertise. Chairman of the 
committee, Mr. Arun Sharma (Independent Director) was present at the last Annual General Meeting.  
 
Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Audit Committee.  
 
Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year viz. on April 21, 2023, July 26, 2023, August 
24, 2023, October 31, 2023, and January 15, 2024 respectively. The details of the members, chairperson and their 
attendance at the meetings are as follows: 
 

Name of the Director Position Category No. of meetings 
attended 

Mr. Arun Sharma Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 5 of 5 

Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha Member Non-Executive Independent Director 5 of 5 
Mr. Manoj Kumar 
Jangir 

Member  Executive Director             5 of 5 

 
4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 
Brief description of terms of reference: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in overseeing the method, criteria and quantum 
of compensation for directors and senior management based on their performance and defined assessment criteria. 
The Committee formulates the criteria for evaluation of the performance of Independent Directors and the Board 
of Directors; identifying the persons who are qualified to become directors, and who may be appointed in senior 
management and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The terms of the reference of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee covers the areas mentioned under Part D of Schedule II of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.  
 
Composition, meeting and attendance  
 
1 (One) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held during the year viz. on July 26, 2023. 
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, names of members & chairperson and details 
of their attendance at the meetings are as follows: 
 

Name of the Director Position Category No. of meetings 
attended 

Mr. Arun Sharma Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 1 of 1 

Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha Member Non-Executive Independent Director 1 of 1 
Mrs. Anjali Member Non-Executive Independent Director 1 of 1 

 
Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors-  
 
Broad parameters for evaluating the performance of Independent Directors amongst other include their 
qualification, experience, participation at the Board/ Committee meetings, understanding and discharging their 
roles and responsibilities, ability to function as a team, exercise of independent judgment, prudence, commitment 
and ability to contribute and monitor corporate governance practices, adherence to the code of conduct, 
maintaining independence and integrity. 
 
Senior Management of the Company: 
 

Sl.No. Name of Personnel Designation Date of becoming SMP 
1. Mr. Kapil Sharma Plant Head December 01, 2020 
2. Mr. Yogender Kumar 

Sharma 
Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer 

March 25, 2023 
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5. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 
The Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to resolve the grievances of security holders. The Committee 
monitors and reviews the performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the 
Company and provides continuous guidance to improve the service levels for investors. The broad terms of 
reference of the Committee are as under: 
 
• To specifically look into complaints received from the shareholders of the Company. 
• To oversee the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the company. 
• To recommend measures for overall improvement in the quality of services to the investors. 
 
Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha, Non-Executive independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee. 
 
The Board has designated Mr. Yogender Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer. 
 
1 (One) meeting of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee were held during the year viz. on April 21, 2023. 

Composition and attendance 

 
Name of the Director Position Category No. of meetings 

attended 
Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha  Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 1 of 1 

Mr. Arun Sharma Member Non-Executive Independent Director 1 of 1 
Mr. Het Ram Member Executive Promoter Director 1 of 1 

 
Details of Complaints from Shareholders: 
 
No. of complaints received during the financial year    : Nil 
No. of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders   : Nil 
No. of pending complaints as ta March 31, 2024     : Nil 
 
Investor Services 
 
Big Share Services Pvt. Ltd is acting as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTAs) of the Company since 
the time of listing. Big Share Services Pvt. Ltd is having adequate infrastructure and VSAT connectivity with both 
the depositories (NSDL & CDSL), which facilitate prompt and better services to the shareholders of the Company. 
 
Name and Address of Compliance Officer- 
 
Mr. Yogender Kumar Sharma 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer                                   
Rajnandini Metal Limited 
Corp. Office: Plot No. 344, Sector-3, Phase II, IMT Bawal, Rewari, Haryana- 123501 
Contact No. +91 1284 264194 
E-mail – cs@rajnandinimetal.com  
 
SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 
 
SEBI vide circular dated 3rd June, 2011 introduced SCORES, i.e., SEBI Complaints Redress System the system 
of processing of investors complaints in a centralized web-based complaints redress portal known as ‘SCORES’. 
The salient features of this system are: 
 
Centralized database of all Complaints, online upload Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned Companies 
and online viewing by investors of action taken on the complaints and its current status. 
 
The Company is registered with SEBI under the SCORES system. 
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6. REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS 
 
(a) There was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the non-executive directors and the company 
during the financial year 2023-24.  
 
(b) Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors:  
 
Sitting fees is paid to non-executive directors based on their contribution and participation in the meeting of the 
Board or Committees thereof.  
 
Payment criteria of non-executive directors are given in the Criteria for making payments to Non-Executive 
Directors Policy. The web link for the same is 
https://www.rajnandinimetal.com/RajnandiniMetalImage/InvestorsPdf/criteria-for-payment-to-ned-s-1.pdf    
 
(c) Details of remuneration to directors:  
 
Company has paid following remuneration to directors during the year under review, which is in accordance with 
the section 178(4) read together with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

a) Non- executive Directors: 
 
The Company benefits from the professional expertise and invaluable experience of the Independent Directors in 
their individual capacity as competent professionals/ business executives in achieving corporate excellence. The 
Company has not granted any stock options to any of its Non-Executive Directors. 
 
During the financial year 2023-24, only sitting fees for attending board or committee meetings and no commission 
was paid to the Non-Executive Directors. The details are as follows: 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director Sitting Fees paid (In Rs.) Commission 

1. Mr. Sanjeev Chhaudha 64,000/- - 
2. Mr. Arun Sharma 80,000/- - 
2. Mrs. Anjali 36,000/- - 

 
b) Executive Directors: 

 
The appointment and payment of remuneration of the executive directors is governed by resolutions passed 
by the shareholders of the company. A separate service contract is not entered into by the company with 
executive directors.  
 
The remuneration of the Executive Directors is fixed keeping in view their qualifications, experience, their 
past performance and also remuneration paid to the Executive Directors of other companies which are similar 
to the Company in terms of nature of business, size and complexity. 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Salary, Perquisites, 
Allowances and Commission 

paid (Rs.) 
1. Mr. Het Ram 84,00,000/- 

2. Mr. Ashok Kalra 31,47,500/- 

4. Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir 13,00,000/- 

 
- No severance fee is payable to any director.  

 
- Stock option details - Company does not have any stock option scheme.  

 
- There are no other performance linked incentives paid by the Company. 
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7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
a) Location, time and date where last three Annual General Meetings were held are given below: 

 
Financial 
Year 

Date and Time Time Venue of Meeting Whether Special 
Resolution passed 

2022-23 13th AGM – 
Friday, September 
22, 2023 

01:30 P.M. Rajnandini Metal Limited 
344, Sectpr-3, Phase-II, IMT 
Bawal, Rewari, Haryana-
123501 
(Held through Video 
Conferencing) 

Yes 

2021-22 12th AGM – 
Friday, September 
09, 2022 

01:30 P.M. Rajnandini Metal Limited 
344, Sectpr-3, Phase-II, IMT 
Bawal, Rewari, Haryana-
123501 
(Held through Video 
Conferencing) 

Yes 

2020-21 11th AGM – 
Friday, August 27, 
2021 

01:30 P.M. Rajnandini Metal Limited 
344, Sectpr-3, Phase-II, IMT 
Bawal, Rewari, Haryana-
123501 
(Held through Video 
Conferencing) 

Yes 

 
     In the last three AGM following Special Resolutions were passed: 
 

Meetings held on Special Resolution passed 

September 22, 2023 Re-appointment of Mr. Het Ram (DIN: 02925990) as Chairman cum 
Managing Director of the Company for a period of five (5) years w.e.f. 
August 1, 2023 to July 31, 2028. 

September 09, 2022 To approve the upward revision in the remuneration of Mr. Het Ram, 
Managing Director of the Company  

27th August, 2021 i. To Consider and approve the change of registered office of the 
company. 

ii. To Approve Increase in borrowing power limits from existing Rs. 
100 crores to Rs. 200 crores or the aggregate of the paid up capital 
and free reserves of the Company, whichever is higher. 

iii. To approve creation of charges on assets of the Company under 
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 to secure borrowings 
made/to be made under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 
2013 

 
(b) Details on Postal Ballot: 
 

Sl.No. Particular Status 
1. Whether any special resolution passed last year 

through postal ballot – details of voting pattern 
During the year under review, Postal Ballot Notice 
dated May 09, 2023 was sent to the Members for 
the following special resolution:  
- Appointment of Mrs. Anjali (DIN: 10096292) 

as an Independent Director of the Company 
for a term of 5 (Five) years 

 
The details of voting pattern were as under- 
 

Category  Votes in Favour  Votes Against 
Promoters 20,24,77,500 0 
Public 5,20,52,304 2,360 
Total 25,45,29,804 2,360 
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2. Person who conducted the postal ballot 
exercise 

Mr. Abhishek Jain, FCS No.-11233, CP No.-
16592, Practicing Company Secretary, of M/s. 
Abhishek J. & Co., was appointed as Scrutinizer 
for conducting both Postal Ballot exercises. 

3. Whether any special resolution is proposed to 
be conducted through postal ballot 

None of the businesses proposed to be transacted 
at the ensuing AGM requires passing of a special 
resolution through postal ballot. 
None of the business is approved by the Board 
which requires passing of a special resolution 
through postal ballot. 

4. Procedure for postal ballot As given in Section 110 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
(c) Details of Extra-ordinary General Meetings held during the year 2023-24- Not Applicable 
 

8. Means of Communication 
 

Sl. No. Particular Status 

a. 
Quarterly results 

Quarterly / Half-yearly/ Annual Financial Results are e-filed 
with NSE. 

b. Newspaper wherein results are 
normally published 

Business Standard 

c. Website where displayed Placed on company’s website www.rajnandinimetal.com 

d. Whether website displays 
official news release 

Financial information, shareholding pattern, codes & polices 
etc. are updated on website www.rajnandinimetal.com 

 

9. General Shareholder Information – 
 

 
g) Market Price Data: High/Low during each month during the financial year 2023-24  
 

The details of Monthly High and Low price(s) on NSE for the financial year 2023-24 are as under: 
 

Month Month Price High Month Price Low 

April, 2023 14.25 11.00 

May, 2023 12.55 8.10 

June, 2023 9.65 8.65 

a) 14th Annual General Meeting Day: Friday 
Date: September 27, 2024 
Time: 01:30 P.M. 
Venue:  Through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual 
Means (OAVM) 

b) Financial Year April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 

c) Dividend payment date Not Applicable 

d) Stock Exchanges on which the 
Company’s Shares are listed 

National Stock Exchange of India (NSE) 
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1 G Block 
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051 
 
The Listing Fees as applicable have been paid within 
prescribed time period. 

e) ISIN under Depository System INE00KV01022 

f) NSE Code RAJMET 
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July, 2023 10.35 8.50 

August, 2023 9.55 8.50 

September, 2023 10.80 9.70 

October, 2023 10.10 8.85 

November, 2023 10.30 8.95 

December, 2023 11.45 8.80 

January, 2024 21.35 10.55 

February, 2024 16.20 11.70 

March, 2024 14.00 10.25 
 

h) In case the securities are suspended from trading, reason thereof- No order was passed for company’s 
securities being suspended from trading. 
 
i) Registrar and Transfer Agents- 
 
M/s Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd continues to be the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company 
for both physical and Demat Shares and the address of their Mumbai & Delhi offices is given below: 
 
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. (Mumbai) 
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,  
Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, 
Marol, Andheri (East),  
Mumbai-400059 
 
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. (Delhi) 
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. 302,  
Kushal Bazar 32-33, Nehru Place, 
New Delhi-110019 
 
j) Share Transfer System- 
 
The share transfer requests are received and processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) i.e. 
Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd and are approved by the Share Transfer Committee of the company, which normally 
meets at regular intervals depending on the volume of share transfers. 
 
The Company has been regularly complying with the provisions of Regulation 7(3) and 40(9) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and a Compliance Certificate Duly signed by 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company and by the Authorized Representative of our RTA 
i.e. Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd as per Regulation 7(3) and Certificate from a Company Secretary-in-Practice for 
due compliance of the share transfer formalities as per Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is being forwarded to NSE on half yearly basis within 30 days from 
the end of each half year as per the provisions of said regulations. 
 
k) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024: 
 

No. of equity shares held 
(Nominal Value) 

Number of 
shareholders 

% to total 
numbers 

Share amount 
(Rs.) 

% to total 

Up To 5,000 1,63,091 97.6739 6,97,28,842 25.2202 
5,001 To 10,000 2,334 1.3978 1,76,60,417 6.3876 
10,001 To 20,000 913 0.5468 1,32,53,423 4.7936 
20,001 To 30,000 289 0.1731 72,19,445 2.6112 
30,001 To 40,000 97 0.0581 34,43,875 1.2456 
40,001 To 50,000 83 0.0497 38,62,305 1.3970 
50,001 To 1,00,000 108 0.0647 78,53,308 2.8405 
1,00,000 and above 60 0.0359 15,34,58,385 55.5043 
Total 166975 100 27,64,80,000 100 
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Categories of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024: 
 

Category  No. of Shares held  % of Shareholding 
Promoter and Promoter Group   
Individuals 14,28,89,315 51.68 
Bodies Corporate-Indian - - 
Bodies Corporate-Foreign - - 
Public   
Individuals shareholders 12,91,30,292 46.71 
Bodies Corporate 16,88,657 0.61 
Non Resident Indians 25,28,219 0.91 
Resident Indian HUF   
Firm 5,420 0.00 
Trusts - - 
Clearing Members/ House 1,61,219 0.06 
Foreign Portfolio Investors 76,878 0.03 
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority - - 
Unclaimed Suspense Account - - 
Total 27,64,80,000 100.00% 

 
l) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: 
 
The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading on both the 
Depositories in India i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL).  
 
As on March 31, 2024, all the 100% equity shares were held in dematerialized form. 
 
The Company’s shares are traded on National Stock Exchange of India and hence provide liquidity to the 
investors. 
 
m) Outstanding ADRs, GDRs, warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and impact on 
equity  
 
The Company has not issued Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipt or Warrants or any 
Convertible instruments. 
 
n) Commodity Price Risk/ Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging- 
 
The Company did not engage in hedging activities. 
 
o) Plant Location- 
 
     Plot No. 344, Sector-3, Phase II, IMT Bawal, Rewari, Haryana-123501 
 
p) Address for Correspondence- 
 
   For any investor grievance- 
 

Rajnandini Metal Limited 
Corp. Office: Plot No. 344, Sector-3,  
Phase II, IMT Bawal 123501, Haryana 
Contact No. +91 1284 264194 
E-mail – cs@rajnandinimetal.com 

 
q) Credit Risk Rating  
 
During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has obtained credit rating from CareEdge Ratings, which has 
assigned CARE BBB-; Negative, on Rs. 10 crores (Fund based-LT-Term Loan) and assigned CARE BBB-, 
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Negative on Rs. 120.00 crores (Fund based-LT-Cash Credit).  
 
r) Green initiative in the Corporate Governance 
 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 18/2011 dated 29th April 2011 has 
clarified that as a measure of “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” it will be in compliance, if the Annual 
Report (i.e. documents listed in section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013) is sent through e-mail. A recent 
amendment to the listing agreement with the Stock Exchanges now permits Company to send soft copies of the 
Annual Report to all those shareholders who have registered email address for the purpose. 
 
The board is sure that you appreciate the Green Initiative that has been undertaken by MCA and hope that you 
will support your Company’s desire to participate in it. 
 

10. Other Disclosures  
 
a. All related party transactions that were entered and executed during the year under review were at arms’ 

length basis. As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder 
read with Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, your 
Company had obtained prior approval of the Audit Committee under omnibus approval route and/ or under 
specific agenda before entering into such transactions. Details of transactions entered with related parties are 
disclosed in the notes forming part of Financial Statements annexed herewith. 
 

b. No penalties were imposed, and no strictures were passed by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory 
authority on any capital market related matters during the last three years. 

 
c. The Company has announced Whistle Blower policy. All the personnel of the company have the access to 

the Audit Committee.  
 

d. The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. The 
Company has adopted various non-mandatory requirements as well, as discussed under relevant headings.  

 
e. The Company has framed a Material Subsidiary Policy and the same is placed on the Company’s website 

and the web link for the same is 
https://www.rajnandinimetal.com/RajnandiniMetalImage/InvestorsPdf/policy-for-determining-material-
subsidiaries-1.pdf.  

 
f. The company has framed Related Party Transaction Policy and is placed on the Company’s website and the 

web link for the same is https://www.rajnandinimetal.com/RajnandiniMetalImage/InvestorsPdf/related-
party-trn-policy-1.pdf.   

 
g. The company did not engage in commodity hedging activities. 

 
h. The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institution placements as 

specified under Regulation 32(7A). 
 

i. A certificate from M/s. Abhishek Jain & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries is enclosed as Annexure-A 
certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 
such statutory authority. 

 
j. The Board had accepted recommendations, if any, of the Committee(s). 

 
k. During the year, details of fees paid to the Statutory Auditor by the Company and its Subsidiaries are given 

below- 
 

Particulars Continuing operations  
(Rs. in lakhs) 

Discontinued operations 
(Rs. in lakhs) 

As Auditor:  - 

Audit fees 8.50 - 

Tax Audit fees 1.25 - 
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Certification Fees 0.79  

CMA data and GST Returns 2.84  

Reimbursement of expenses: GST 2.40  

Total 15.78 - 
 
l. Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 

During the financial year 2023-24, the details of the complaint were as under 
 
1. Number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil 
2. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year Not Applicable 
3. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil 

 
m. The Company has not given any Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which 

directors are interested. 
 

n. The Company does not have any material subsidiary. 
 

11. There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report. 
 

12. ADOPTION OF DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. The Board  
 
The Company has an Executive Chairperson.  
 
B. Shareholder Rights  
 
Half yearly financial results are forwarded to the Stock Exchanges and uploaded on the website of the 
Company like quarterly results.  
 
C. Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report 
 
There was no audit qualification in the Auditors’ Report on the Company’s financial statements.  
 
D. Reporting of Internal Auditor  
 
The Internal Auditor of the Company reporting their findings of the internal audit to the Audit Committee. 

 
13. The Company has fully complied with the applicable requirement specified in Reg. 17 to 27 and clause 

(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company, as per 
Schedule-V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company 
has received confirmation from the Directors and Senior Management regarding compliance with the code for the 
year ended March 31, 2024. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Sd/- 

                              Het Ram  
Chairman & Managing Director 

`                       (DIN: 02925990) 
Place: Bawal 
Date: August 29, 2024 
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ANNEXURE-A 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS  
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 
 
The Members of  
Rajnandini Metal Limited 
Plot No. 344, Sector 3, Phase II,  
IMT Bawal, Haryana 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
Rajnandini Metal Limited having CIN L51109HR2010PLC040255 and having registered office at Plot No. 344, 
Sector 3, Phase II, IMT Bawal, Haryana - 123501 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before 
me by the Company for the purpose of  issuing  this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary  and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

Name of the Director PAN and DIN Date of Appointment as 
per MCA portal 

Status of DIN as per MCA 
portal 

Het Ram PAN- AFVPR5490R 
DIN- 02925990 

18/03/2010 ACTIVE 

Manoj Kumar Jangir PAN- AKMPJ4960C 
DIN- 08069170 

30/11/2022 ACTIVE 

Anjali PAN- APTPA2659D 
DIN - 10096292 

25/03/2023 ACTIVE 

Sanjeev Chhaudha PAN- BZEPS3267D 
DIN- 08932721 

06/11/2020 ACTIVE 

Ashok Kalra PAN- DKJPK8484C 
DIN- 09024019 

12/01/2021 ACTIVE 

Arun Sharma PAN- EQSPS1697P 
DIN- 09107533 

16/03/2021 ACTIVE 

 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 

 
For Abhishek J & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

   
                    
                                  CS Abhishek Jain 

Place: Noida                                                    FCS No. F11233 
Date: August 28, 2024                                                          C.P No. 16592 
UDIN: F011233F001058323 
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To 
The Members of  
Rajnandini Metal Limited 
 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Rajnandini Metal Limited, for 

the year ended on 31st March 2024, as stipulated in Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 
has been limited to a review of the procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 
representations made by the directors and the management, we hereby certify that the Company has 
complied with the requirements & conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the 
said Company with stock exchanges.  

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For Abhishek J & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

   
 
 
 
                    
                                  CS Abhishek Jain 

Place: Noida                                                       FCS No. F11233 
Date: August 28, 2024                                                            C.P No. 16592 
UDIN: F011233F001058334 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED (the “Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit 

1. Recognition, measurement and presentation of Contingent Liabilities and other litigations: 
 Assessment of litigations and related 

disclosure of contingent liabilities (Refer 
Note 26C(vi) to the financial statements– 
“Significant accounting judgments, 
estimates and assumptions - Provisions and 
contingent liabilities” and Note 26.D.5 to 
the financial statements “Contingent 
liabilities”) as at March 31, 2024. The 
Company, in the normal course of business, 
is contesting various claims and 
proceedings including matters relating to 
direct and indirect taxes that arise from time 
to time. The Company assesses the need to 
make provision or disclose a contingency 
on a case tocase basis considering the 
underlying facts of each such litigation or 
dispute. This assessment is significant to 
our audit, to assess adequacy of disclosure 
or provision in the books of account. 

Our audit procedures included the following: 
 

 We understood the processes, evaluated the 
design and implementation of controls and tested 
the operating effectiveness of the Company’s 
controls over the recording and reassessment of 
uncertain legal positions, litigations and 
contingent liabilities. 

 
 We obtained an understanding of the nature of 

litigations pending against the Company by 
reading the minutes of the Board of Directors 
meetings and discussing the developments 
during the year for key litigations with Senior 
Management personnel. 

 
 Verified the completeness of the litigations and 

claims by examining on a sample basis, the legal 
and professional expenses incurred during the 
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The accounting and disclosure for 
contingent liabilities is complex & involves 
judgment in assessing the outcome of the 
matter and estimating the potential impact 
if the outcomes are unfavourable, and the 
amounts involved are, or can be, material to 
the financial statements. Considering the 
amounts, which can be material and involve 
significant management judgement and 
estimation, we have identified this as a key 
audit matter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

year. 
 

 We performed our assessment on a test basis on 
the underlying calculations supporting the 
contingent liabilities/ other significant litigations 
disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
 Evaluated the evidence supporting the 

judgement of the management about possible 
outcomes and the reasonableness of the 
assumptions and estimates, used in measuring 
the probable or possible impact. 

 
 Involved our internal tax experts to challenge the 

Management judgement and rationale with 
respect to tax provisions not made in the books 
of account or disclosed as contingent liability or 
cases where outflow of resources is remote and 
do not warrant any disclosure. 

 
 Evaluated appropriateness and adequacy of the 

disclosures of the contingent liability made in the 
financial statements in accordance with the 
requirements of Ind AS 37 - ‘Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset’ and 
Ind AS 12 - ‘Income Taxes’. 

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The 
Director’s Report, Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis and report on corporate 
governance is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
Management’s and Board Of Director’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.  
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
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using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors and Management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.  
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board Of Directors use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Financial Statements. 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph 1 (i) (vi) 
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 
 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account. 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 
of the Act. 
 

e) On  the  basis  of  the  written  representations  received  from  the   directors   as   on March 31, 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 

f) The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as 
stated in paragraph 1 (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 1 (i) (vi) below on 
reporting under Rule 11(g)of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 
 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our 
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting. 
 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 
i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 

financial statements. – Refer Note 26.D.5 to the financial statements 
 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.   
 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

iv.  
(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
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Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 
 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement. 

 
v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

 
vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and information given to us, the Company 

has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which did not have a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the respective softwares, hence we are unable to comment on audit trail feature of 
the said software. 

 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and 
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to information and explanations given 
to us,  we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable. 

 
 

For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 003343N) 
 
 
 

NARESH KUMAR AGGARWAL 
Partner 

(Membership No.087351)  
UDIN : 24087351BKALLY7955 

Place: Faridabad  
Date:  10.05.2024                
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of Rajnandini Metal Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2024 of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub- section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED 
(the “Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Management and Board of Directors’ of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 
“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards 
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such   internal    
financial    controls    over    financial    reporting    were    operating    effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on 
the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 
 

For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 003343N) 
 
 
 

NARESH KUMAR AGGARWAL 
Partner 

(Membership No.087351)  
UDIN: 24087351BKALLY7955 

Place: Faridabad  
Date: 10.05.2024 
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of Rajnandini Metal Limited of even date) 
 
To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 
 
i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 
 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

 
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

 
(b) We are explained that the management has carried out the year end physical verification of majority 

of fixed assets. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to 
the size and nature of operations of the Company. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. The management has 
adopted physical verification in a phased manner so that all the Property, Plant & Equipment are 
covered within a period of three years. 
 

(c) Based on our examination of record of the Company and information and explanations given, we 
report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable 
properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plant 
and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 
 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right- of-use 
assets) and intangible assets during the year. 
 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
record of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

 
ii. (a)  Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the   management. 

In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No 
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed during such 
physical verification by the management. 

 
(b)  During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. Five 
crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions during the year based on security of current 
assets of the Company. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with the banks are in 
agreement with the books of account of the Company other than those set out below: 

 

Quarter 
Particulars of 
Security 

As per books of 
accounts (in 
lakhs) 

Amount as 
reported in 
quarterly 
statement 
(in lakhs) 

Amount of 
difference 
(in lakhs) 

Reason for material 
discrepancies 

June 2023 Inventory 72,55.49 70,65.50 1,89.99 Primarily, due to non 
inclusion of Certain Items 
of inventory while 
furnishing the statement 
to the Bank, with the 
result that Inventory 
Statements submitted to 
the banks contained a 
lesser value than the 
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actual inventory held. 
Sep 2023 Inventory 82,74.09 90,76.55 -8,02.46 The difference is 

primarily due to some 
clerical error while 
determining amount of 
Inventory as furnished 
before the Banks. 
However, had not been 
the committed such 
clerical error to determine 
the amount of Inventory, 
then also the company 
was having sufficient 
Drawing Power Limit 
over the currently 
sanctioned limit. 

Dec 2023 Inventory 98,39.89 1,14,45.63 -16,05.74 

Mar 2024 Inventory 97,02.52 85.89.40 11,13.13 Primarily, due to non 
inclusion of Certain Items 
of inventory while 
furnishing the statement 
to the Bank, with the 
result that Inventory 
Statements submitted to 
the banks contained a 
lesser value than the 
actual inventory held 

June 2023 Trade 
receivables 

24,34.96 28,51.00 -4,16.04 The difference is 
primarily due to some 
clerical error while 
determining amountof 
Trade Receivables as 
furnished before the 
Banks. However, had not 
been the committed such 
clerical error to determine 
the amount of Trade 
Receivables, then also the 
company was having 
sufficient Drawing Power 
Limit over the currently 
sanctioned limit. 

Sep 2023 Trade 
receivables 

49,45.40 54,53.65 -5,08.25 

Dec 2023 Trade 
receivables 

18,28.78 27,87.19 -9,58.41 

Mar 2024 Trade 
receivables 

24,59.82 26,22.19 -1,62.37 

 
 

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
records of the Company, during the under report, the Company has neither made investments in, or 
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to 
Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(iii) of the order is not applicable. 
 
 

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made investments or provided any guarantee or securities. 
Hence, reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any 
deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be deposits, within the meaning of 
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, 
the provisions stated under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. Also, there are no 
amounts outstanding as on March 31, 2024, which are in the nature of deposits. 
 

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain 
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cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly 
reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have 
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a 
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 
 

vii. In respect of statutory dues: 
 

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales 
Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

 
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, 
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on records of the Company 

examined by us, details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been 
deposited as on March 31, 2024, on account of any dispute, are as follows: 

 

Name of the 
statute 

Nature of 
dues 

Amount 
demanded 
` in lakhs 

Amount paid 
` in lakhs 

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates 

Forum where 
dispute is pending 

The Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 155 110 2018-2019 
Income Tax 
Appellate Tribunal 

 
Note: INR 110 Lakhs were being adjusted against Income Tax Demand of INR 155 lakhs for the A.Y. 
2018-19 from Income Tax Refunds determined in subsequent assessment years.  

 
viii. According to the explanations and information given to us by the management and as verified by us, 

there are no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 
ix.  

(a) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
record of the company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or 
in the payment of interest thereon to lenders. 

 
(b) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

record of the Company, the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

 
(c) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

record of the Company, the Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were 
obtained. 

 
(d) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

record of the Company, it has not raised any fund on short- term basis. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(ix)(d) of the order is not applicable.  

 
(e) According to information and explanation given to us the Company has neither any subsidiary 

company, associate company or joint venture company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the 
order is not applicable.   

 
(f) The Company has not any subsidiary and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not 

applicable. 
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x.  
(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

 
(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 

shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 
(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
xi.  

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud 
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

 
(b) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance 

with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to 
be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause (xi)(b) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(c) We have been inform by the Management that the company has not received any whistleblower 

complaints during the year (and upto the date of this report), hence reporting under clause (xi)(c) 
of the order not applicable.  

 
xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not 

applicable. 
 

xiii. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 
xiv.  

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
the nature of its business. 
 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the   Company 
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

 
xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its 

Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 
xvi.  

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a)of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
 

(d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group and accordingly reporting 
under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the 
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immediately preceding financial year. 
 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 
 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due. 

 
xx.  

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be 
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance 
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.  Accordingly, reporting under 
clause (xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(b) Based of our examination of records of the Company and as explained to us, the Company has 
transferred funds during the year required to be spent on CSR to implementing agencies for 
designated projects. Based on third party confirmations, we report that there are no unspent 
amounts u/s. 135(5) of the Act pursuant to ongoing projects being under taken by the said 
implementing agencies. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 
 

xxi. Since this report is being issued in respect of standalone financial statements of the company, 
hence clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the said Order is not applicable. 

 
 

For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 003343N) 
 
 
 

NARESH KUMAR AGGARWAL 
Partner 

(Membership No.087351)  
UDIN: 24087351BKALLY7955 

Place: Faridabad  
Date: 10.05.2024 
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(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes  As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023 

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipments 1 3,396                                 3,487                                 
Intangible Assets 2 0                                        0                                        
Capital work-in-progress 3 118                                    -                                     
Financial assets

i)  Other Financial Assets 4 42                                      47                                      
Income Tax Assets (net) 23 26                                      -                                     
Total Non-Current Assets                                  3,582                                  3,534 

Current Assets
Inventories 6 9,703                                 6,182                                 
Financial assets

i) Trade receivables 7 2,460                                 3,295                                 
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8(a) 8                                        33                                      
iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 8(b) 49                                      47                                      

Other current assets 9 627                                    897                                    
Total Current Assets                                12,847                                10,454 

Total Assets                                16,429                                13,988 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 10 2,765                                 2,765                                 
Other equity 11 2,906                                 1,378                                 
Total equity 5,671                                 4,143                                 

LIABILITIES
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

i) Borrowings 12(a) 621                                    912                                    
Employee benefit obligations 13 34                                      30                                      
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5 150                                    175                                    
Total Non-Current Liabilities 805                                    1,117                                 

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings 12(b) 9,421                                 6,282                                 
ii) Trade payables 14

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 8                                        -                                     
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

475                                    2,318                                 

Income Tax Liabilities (net) 23 -                                     95                                      
Other current liabilities 15 49                                      33                                      
Total Current Liabilities 9,953                                 8,728                                 

Total Liabilities 10,758                               9,845                                 

Total Equity and Liabilities 16,429                               13,988                               

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 26
The above standalone balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

As per our Report of even date attached
For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(Naresh Kumar Aggarwal ) (Het Ram) (Ashok Kalra)
Partner Director Director
FRN : 003343N, M.No. : 087351 (DIN 02925990) (DIN 09024019)

Place  :  Faridabad (Manoj Kumar Jangir)                     (Yogendra Kumar Sharma)
Date  :   10.05.2024      CFO & Director                                   Company Secretary
UDIN - 24087351BKALLY7955      (DIN 08069170)

RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
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(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 Notes 
 Year ended March 

31, 2024 
 Year ended March 

31, 2023 
Income
Revenue from operations 16 1,21,243                       1,02,888                       
Other income 17 850                               1,017                            
Total Income 1,22,093                       1,03,905                       

Expenses
Cost of Raw Material Consumed 18 1,15,786                       97,305                          
Changes in inventories of Finished goods, work-in-progress and 
stock-in-trade

19 -69 585                               

Employee Benefit expense 20 665                               574                               
Finance Cost 21 1,138                            728                               
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 1 121                               119                               
Other Expenses 22 2,714                            2,482                            
Total Expenses 1,20,355                       1,01,793                       

Profit before Tax 1,738 2,112                            
Income Tax expense

-Current Tax 23 240                               710                               
-Deferred Tax 5 -26 34                                 

Total Tax Expense 214                               744                               

Profit for the year 1,524 1,368                            

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss:
Re-measurement gains on Defined Benefit Plans 5                                   -                                
Less: Tax effect on Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Plans -1 -                                
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year 4                                   -                                

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,528 1,368                            

Basic earnings per share of par value INR 1/- each (INR per share)  24                               0.55 0.50                              
Diluted earnings per share of par value INR 1/- each (INR per share) 24                               0.55 0.50                              

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 26
The above standalone statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our Report of even date attached
For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(Naresh Kumar Aggarwal ) (Het Ram) (Ashok Kalra)
Partner Director Director
FRN : 003343N, M.No. : 087351 (DIN 02925990) (DIN 09024019)

Place  :  Faridabad (Manoj Kumar Jangir)                     (Yogendra Kumar Sharma)
Date  :   10.05.2024      CFO & Director                                   Company Secretary
UDIN - 24087351BKALLY7955      (DIN 08069170)

RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Tax                                 1,738                                 2,112 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense                                    121                                    119 
Finance Costs                                 1,138                                    728 
(Gain)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets                                      -                                        (2)
Fixed assets written off                                        3                                      -   
Interest Received                                  (391)                                  (250)
Operating Profit before working capital change                                 2,609                                 2,707 
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories                               (3,521)                               (1,742)
(Increase)/Decrease in Financial-Non-current assets                                        5                                    (16)
(Increase)/Decrease in Financial-current assets                                    833                                  (109)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets                                    270                                  (337)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables                               (1,835)                                  (138)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other-curent Liabilities                                      16                                    (16)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions                                        4                                        5 
Cash generated from Operations                               (1,619)                                    354 
Income Tax Paid (net of refunds)                                  (356)                                  (615)

Net Cash flow from Operating activities (A)                               (1,975)                                  (261)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets including Intangible assets & CWIP                                  (151)                               (1,111)
Sale proceeds from disposal of Fixed assets -                                   2                                       
Interest received 391                                   250                                   
Net cash flow/(used in) from Investing activities (B)                                    240                                  (859)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds / (repayment) of Borrowings 2,848                                2,052                                
Dividend Paid -                                   (184)                                 
Finance Costs (1,138)                              (728)                                 
Net cash flow from financing activities (C)                                 1,710                                 1,140 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (A+B+C) -25                                      20 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year                                      33                                      13 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                                        8                                      33 

B. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement:

Particulars  As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023 
Cash and cash equivalents                                        8                                      33 
Balance as per statement of cash flows                                        8                                      33 
The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 26

As per our Report of even date attached
For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(Naresh Kumar Aggarwal ) (Het Ram) (Ashok Kalra)
Partner Director Director
FRN : 003343N, M.No. : 087351 (DIN 02925990) (DIN 09024019)

Place  :  Faridabad (Manoj Kumar Jangir)                     (Yogendra Kumar Sharma)
Date  :   10.05.2024      CFO & Director                                   Company Secretary
UDIN - 24087351BKALLY7955      (DIN 08069170)

The above standalone statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Number of shares
(in Lakhs)

Amount

184.32                            1,843.20                      
2,580.48                         921.60                         
2,764.80                         2,764.80                      

-                                  -                              
2,764.80                         2,764.80                      

B. Other equity 

 Securities premium  Retained earnings Total

Balance at April 01, 2022 # 1,116                          1,116                       
Profit for the year -                                 1,368                          1,368                       
Other comprehensive income for the year -                                 -                              -                           
Total comprehensive income for the year -                                 1,368                          1,368                       
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Dividend Paid -                                 (184)                            (184)                         
Issue of bonus equity shares -                                 (922)                            (922)                         
Balance at March 31, 2023 # 1,378                          1,378                       
Profit for the year -                                 1,524                          1,524                       
Other comprehensive income for the year -                                 4                                 4                              
Total comprehensive income for the year -                                 1,528                          1,528                       
Balance at March 31, 2024 # 2,906                           2,906                        

# below roundig off norms

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 26
The above standalone statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

As per our Report of even date attached
For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(Naresh Kumar Aggarwal ) (Het Ram) (Ashok Kalra)
Partner Director Director
FRN : 003343N, M.No. : 087351 (DIN 02925990) (DIN 09024019)

Place  :  Faridabad (Manoj Kumar Jangir)                     (Yogendra Kumar Sharma)
Date  :   10.05.2024       CFO & Director                                  Company Secretary

UDIN - 24087351BKALLY7955         (DIN 08069170)

As at April 01, 2022

Particulars Notes
Reserves and surplus

Changes in equity share capital 
As at March 31, 2023
Changes in equity share capital 
As at March 31, 2024

Particulars
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Land Buildings
Plant & 

Equipment
Vehicles

Office 
Equipment/Furniture

Computer
Total

Year ended March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 602                     333             1,575                130            33                                  9               2,682                    
Additions 1,070                  -              36                     -             3                                    3               1,112                    
Deletions -                      -              -                   (14)            -                                 -            (14)                       
Closing gross carrying amount 1,672                  333             1,611                116            36                                  12             3,780                    

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation -                      20               150                   7                7                                    3               187                       

-                      9                 83                     18              6                                    3               119                       
Deletions -                      -              -                   (13)            -                                 -            (13)                       
Closing accumulated depreciation -                      29               233                   12              13                                  6               293                       
Closing net carrying amount 1,672                  304             1,378                104            23                                  6               3,487                    

Year ended March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 1,672                  333             1,611                116            36                                  12             3,780                    
Additions -                      -              31                     -             2                                    0               33                         
Deletions -                      -              (5)                     -            (8)                                  (5)             (18)                       
Closing gross carrying amount 1,672                  333             1,637                116            30                                  7               3,795                    

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation -                      29               233                   12              13                                  6               293                       

-                      9                 85                     18              6                                    3               121                       
Deletions -                      -              (3)                     -            (7)                                  (5)             (15)                       
Closing accumulated depreciation -                      38               315                   30              12                                  4               399                       
Closing net carrying amount 1,672                  295             1,322                86              18                                  3               3,396                    

2 Intangible Assets

Computer 
Software

Total

Year ended March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 0                        0                
Additions -                     -             
Deletions -                     -             
Closing gross carrying amount 0                        0                

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 0                        0                

0                        0                
Deletions -                     -             
Closing accumulated depreciation 0                        0                
Closing net carrying amount 0                        0*

Year ended March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 0                        0                
Additions
Deletions
Closing gross carrying amount 0                        0                

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 0                        0                

Deletions
Closing accumulated depreciation 0                        0                
Closing net carrying amount 0                        0*

* Due to rounding off norms

Depreciation charge for the year

Depreciation charge for the year

Depreciation charge for the year

Depreciation charge for the year
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Capital work-in-progress
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 

Capital work-in-progress 118                           -                            
Total Capital work in progress 118                           -                            

The capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Particluars
 Less than 

1 year 
 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years  Total 

Project in progress 118           -           -                  -                            118                           
Total Capital work in progress 118           -           -                  -                            118                           

4
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Unsecured, Considered good

Security deposits 42                             47                             
Total Other Financial Assets 42                             47                             

5 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Deferred tax assets
Gratuity 9                               
Total deferred tax assets (A)                                9                               -   

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 159                           175                           
Total deferred tax liabilities (B)                            159                            175 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) (A-B) (150)                         (175)                         

Movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities

 Particulars 
 As at 

March 
31,2023 

Recognised in 
profit or loss

 Recognised in 
other 

comprehensive 
income 

 As at March 31, 
2024 

Deferred tax assets
Gratuity                  -                      10                               -1                                9 
Total deferred tax assets (A)                  -                      10                               (1)                                9 

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment               175                  (16)                               -                              159 
Total deferred tax liabilities (B)               175                  (16)                               -                              159 
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) (A-
B)

             (175)                    26                               (1)                           (150)

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Other Financial Assets
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 Particulars 
 As at 

March 
31,2022 

Recognised in 
profit or loss

 Recognised in 
other 

comprehensive 
income 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment                  -                       -                                 -                                 -   
Total deferred tax assets (A)                  -                       -                                 -                                 -   

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment               140                    34                               -                              175 
Total deferred tax liabilities (B)               140                    34                               -                              175 
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) (A-
B)

             (140)                  (34)                               -                             (175)

6 Inventories  As at March 31, 
2024 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

Raw Materials 8,346                        4,895                        
Work-in-progress 566                           10                             
Finished Goods 374                           1,073                        
Scrap materials -                            9                               
Stores and Spares 416                           195                           
Total Inventories 9,703                        6,182                        

7  As at March 31, 
2024 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

(Valued at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables from contract with customers 2,460                        3,295                        
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts* -                            -                           
Total trade receivables 2,460                        3,295                        

Note: Refer note 25.1 and 25.2 for ageing schedule

8 (a) Cash and cash equivalents  As at March 31, 
2024 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

Cash on hand 8                               7                               
Balance with banks in current accounts -                            26                             
Total cash and cash equivalents 8                               33                             

(b) Bank balances other than (a) above
Deposits account with bank maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months
- Remaining maturity for less than twelve months 49                             47                             
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 49                             47                             

8.1 There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period

7.1 Trade receivables are usually on trade terms based on credit worthiness of customers as per the terms of contract with customers.

7.2 Trade receivables includes from related parties INR 143 lakhs (March 31, 2023 674 lakhs) refer note 26(D)(4).

*The allowance for bad & doubtful debts (for impairment of trade receivable) has been made on the basis of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Method based on
management's judgement. To the extent of ECL provision, the trade receivables have been classified as doubtful and the remaining have been considered as
good

Trade receivables

(i) The Company’s  weighted average tax rates for the year ended March 31, 2024 was 25.17%  and March 31, 2023: 25.17% , respectively.

(ii) Deferred tax assets have been recognized to the extent of available and reasonable certainty of future taxable profits which will be 
available against which temporary differences can be utilised.

6.1 Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. The cost formulas used are Weighted Average Cost in case of
Raw Material (Copper Scrap) and First-in First Out ('FIFO') in case of Ancillary Raw Material and Stores & Spares. The cost of inventories
comprises all cost of purchase including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), conversion
cost and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
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9 Other current assets  As at March 31, 
2024 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

Advances for materials and services 71                             383                           
Other advance 67                             -                            
Balances with government authorities 481                           479                           
Prepaid expenses 8                               35                             

Total other current assets 627                           897                           
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Share capital 
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Number 31-March, 2024 Number 31-March, 2023
(a) Authorised equity share capital

Equity shares of INR 1 each 50,00,00,000    5,000                    50,00,00,000  5,000                    

(b)
Equity shares of INR 1 each 27,64,80,000     2,765                    27,64,80,000   2,765                    

(c)
Equity shares at the beginning of the year (Face Value INR 1) 27,64,80,000     2,765                    1,84,32,000     1,843                    
Add: Bonus share issued during the year -                     -                        92,16,000        922                       
Add: Share split during the year (Face Value INR 1) -                     -                        24,88,32,000   -                        
Total 27,64,80,000     2,765                    27,64,80,000   2,765                    

(d) Terms / Rights attached to equity shares

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Number of 
shares (in 

Lakhs)

 % holding Number of 
shares (in 

Lakhs)

 % holding 

1,429                 51.68% 2,025               73.23%

(f)

(g) Shareholding of Promoter at the end of the year

No. of Shares
(Absolute)

% of Total Share

14,28,80,315  51.68%
4,500              0.00%
4,500              0.00% Nil3. Nandini Sharma

Promoter Name

1. Het Ram
2. Raj Bala

% Change during the year

-21.56%
Nil

The Company has issued 92,16,000 equity shares as fully paid bonus shares in the ratio of 1:2 (i.e. one bonus share of Rs. 10/- each for two equity share
of INR 10/- each) to every sharehoder holding equity share on 15 Sep 2022.

 As at March 31, 2023 

ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity share will be eligible to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of 
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up share capital

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding

i) The Company has a single class of Equity Shares having a par value of INR 1 per share (Previous Year INR 1 per share). Each holder of equity shares 
is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Name of Shareholder

 As at March 31, 2024 

Het Ram

Aggregate number and class of shares alloted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares:
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

11 Other equity

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Securities premium * 0                                   0                                   
Retained earnings 2,906                            1,378                            
Total reserves and surplus 2,906                            1,378                            

(i) Securities premium 

Opening balance* 0                                   0                                   
Amount received on issue of shares -                                -                                
Amount utilized towards bonus issue of shares -                                -                                

0                                   0                                   

(ii) Retained earnings
Opening balance 1,378                            1,116                            
Profit for the year 1,528                            1,368                             
Dividend Paid -                                 (184)                              
Amount utilized towards bonus issue of shares -                                 (922)                              
Closing balance 2,906                            1,378                            

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Securities premium

Retained earnings

*below rounding off norms

Reserves and Surplus

Closing balance*

Retained Earnings are profits that the Company has earned till date less transfer to General Reserve, dividend or other
distribution or transaction with shareholders.

Where a company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the 
premium received on those shares is transferred to “Securities Premium Account” and the utilisation thereof is in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

12 Borrowings
a) Non - Current

 As at March 31, 
2024 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

Secured
Loans from Banks

Rupee Term Loan 621                      787                      
Rupee Car Loan -                       7                          
Working Capital Term Loan -                       118                      

621                      912                      

b) Current
Secured
Loans from Banks

Rupee Term Loan 166                      166                      
Rupee Car Loan 7                          32                        
Working Capital Term Loan 134                      180                      
Cash credit facilities 9,115                   5,905                   

9,421                   6,282                   

The above loans are secured by way of:
Rupee Term Loan

Rupee Car Loan

i) Car Loans are secured by way of Hypothecation of Car
Working Capital Term Loan
i) Axis Bank to have Second charge over primary and collateral securities except Guarantees
Cash Credit facilities
i) First  Pari Passu Charge by way of hypothecation on all Current Assets of the Borrower (Both Present & Future)

Terms of repayment:
Rupee Term Loan

13 Employee benefit obligations  As at March 31, 
2024 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

Gratuity 34                        30                        
34                        30                        

Total Borrowings - Non Current

Total employee benefit obligations

Total Borrowings - Current

Repayable in 72 equal monthly installments of INR 13.80 Lakhs each commencing from January 2023. Last installment due in
January 2029. Rate of Interest 9.80% p.a. as at year end March 31, 2024. (March 31, 2023: 9.80% p.a.)
[Total Outstanding INR 787 Lakhs ( March 31, 2023: INR 952 Lakhs) out of which INR 166 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 166 Lakhs) 
taken to current maturities of long term debts]

iii) Personal guarantee of Mr. Het Ram

ii) First Pari Passu charge by way of hypothecation on all Movable Fixed Assets (Except for plants and machinery purchased out of 
Term Loan form south India Bank) of the Borrower (both Present & Future)

iii) First Pari Passu charge by way of Equitable mortgage on Industrial Property located at Industrial Plot No-344 and 345 Sector 3 
phase II near Hal Industries IMT Bawal  District Rewari Haryana-123501.

iv) Personal guarantee of Mr. Het Ram

i) First Pari Passu charge by way of Equitable mortgage on Industrial Property located at Industrial Plot No-344 and 345 Sector 3 
phase II near Hal Industries IMT Bawal  District Rewari Haryana-123501

ii) Second Pari Passu Charge by way of hypothecation on plant and Machinery (Purchased out of Term Loan Form South Indian Bank)
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14 Trade payables  As at March 31, 
2024 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

                          8 -                      

                      475                    2,318 

Total trade payables 483                      2,318                   

Note: Refer note 25.3 and 25.4 for ageing schedule

15 Other Current Liabilities  As at March 31, 
2024 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

Statutory dues payables 26                        21                        
Advance from Customers 23                        12                        
Total other current liabilities 49                        33                        

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

The carrying values of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16 Revenue from operations
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Sale of Finished Goods 1,21,243                 1,02,888                 
Total revenue from operations 1,21,243                 1,02,888                 

(ii)

17 Other income
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Interest income
-on income tax refund 6                             5                             
-on deposit with bank 2                             9                             
-other 389                         285                         

Liabilities written back 452                         715                         
Other Non Operating Income

Other income 1                             2                             
Total other income                          850                       1,017 

18 Cost of Raw Material Consumed
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Opening Stock of Copper Scrap 4,895                      2,569                      
Purchase Copper Scrap 1,19,237                 99,631                    
Less : Closing Stock of Copper Scrap (8,346)                    (4,895)                    
Total Raw Material Consumed                  1,15,786                     97,305 

19 Changes in inventories of Finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Stock at Commencement

Stock in Trade 9                             9                             
Stock of Scrap 10                           5                             
Work in progress 195                         6                             
Finished Goods 1,073                      1,852                      

                      1,287                       1,872 
Stock at Close

Stock in Trade -                         9                             
       Work-in-progress 566                         10                           

        Stock of Scrap & Stores 416                         195                         
        Finished Goods 374                         1,073                      

                      1,356                       1,287 
Total Changes in inventories of Finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade                           (69)                          585 

 Revenue from contracts with customers

Performance obligation:
Sale of products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satisfied when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery/ despatch of the goods as applicable and payment is generally due as per the terms of contract with
customers.
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20 Employee benefit expense
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Salaries, wages, bonus, commission and other benefits 596                         529                         
Gratuity expense 9                             5                             
Contribution to provident & other funds 32                           24                           
Staff and Labour welfare expenses 28                           17                           
Total Employee benefit expense 665                         574                         

21 Finance cost
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities 1,138                      728                         
Interest on delayed payment to MSME* 0                             -                          
Total finance cost 1,138                      728                         

22 Other expenses
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Power & Fuel 1,529                      1,440                      
Freight and Transportation 357                         246                         
Job Work Charges 19                           18                           
Other Manufacturing expenses 84                           84                           
Packing Material Consumed 52                           37                           
Repair & Maintenance -  Machinery 308                         355                         
Repair Others 23                           4                             
Legal & Professional Expenses 80                           58                           
Fixed assets written off 3                             -                          
Rates & Taxes 11                           20                           
Rent 1                             6                             
Insurance 26                           24                           
Communication Expenses 2                             3                             
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 28                           15                           
Conveyance & Travelling Expense 26                           8                             
Business Promotion 46                           89                           
Printing & Stationary 3                             4                             
Sundry balances written off 6                             -                          
Directors' Sitting Fees 1                             4                             
Payment To Auditors (refer note 22(a) below) 9                             8                             
Other expenses 99                           59                           

Total Other Expenses 2,714                      2,482                      

Note 22(a) : Details of payments to auditors
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Payments to auditors
As auditor :
Statuory Audit fee 7                             7                             
In other capacities
Tax Audit Fees 1                             1                             
Certification and other service fees 1                             -                         
Total payments to auditors 9                             8                             

* below rounding off norms
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

23  Income tax expense

 Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

(a)Income tax expense
Current tax on profits for the year
Current Tax 435                        710                        
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (195)                      -                         
Total current tax expense                         240                         710 

Deferred tax
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (10)                        -                        
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities (16)                        34                         
Total deferred tax expense/(credit) (26)                        34                         
Income tax expense 214                       744                       

(b)Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate :
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Profit before tax as per statement of profit & loss 1,738                    2,112                    
Indian Income Tax Rate 25.17% 34.94%
Computed Tax expense                         437                         738 
Tax effect of:
Expenses diallowed -Expenses that are not deductible in determinding taxable profit                           (2)                         (28)
Current Tax provision (A)                    435                    710 
Incremental Deferred Tax Liability on account of Tangible and Intengible Assets                         (26)                           34 
Deferred Tax provision (B)                         (26)                           34 
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (C)                  (195)                       -   
Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (A+B+C) 214                       744                       

(c) The details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Income Tax Assets                           26                            -   
Income Tax Liabilities                            -                           (95)
Net income tax assets/(liabilities) at the end 26                                                  (95)

The gross movement in the current income tax assets/ (liabilities) for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as follows:
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Net income tax assets/(liabilities) at the beginning                         (95)                            -   
Income Tax paid                         362                         615 
Current income tax expense                       (436)                       (710)
Tax adjustment for prior perod                         189                            -   
Interest on income tax refund                             6                            -   
Income Tax on other comprehensive income                            -                              -   
Net income tax assets/(liabilities) at the end                           26                         (95)

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24 Earnings per share
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 
(a) Basic earnings per share                      0.55 0.50                     
      Diluted earnings per share                      0.55 0.50                     

(b)Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

 Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Net Profit/(loss) after Tax as per statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity                    1,528 1,368                   
Shareholders

(c)Weighted average number of shares used as denominator

 Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

                   2,765                    2,765 
Weighted average number of shares used as denominator in calculating basic and diluted 
earnings per share
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

25.1 Trade Receivables ageing as at March 31, 2024

Unbilled Not due
Less than 6 

Months
6 Months - 

1 Year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 years Total

            -                -               2,003                 2            283                    16                               -                            2,304 

            -                -                    -                  -                -                       -                                 -                                 -   

            -                -                    -                  -                -                       -                                 -                                 -   

            -                -                    -                  -               32                   124                               -                               156 

            -                -                    -                  -                -                       -                                 -                                 -   

            -                -                    -                  -                -                       -                                 -                                 -   

25.2

Unbilled Not due
Less than 6 

Months
6 Months - 

1 Year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 years Total

            -                -              3,026               27           241                     -                                 -                           3,295 

            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -                                 -   

            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -                                 -   

            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -                                 -   
            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -                                 -   

            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -                                 -   

25.3 Trade Payables ageing as at March 31, 2024

Unbilled 
dues

Not due
Less than 1 

year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More Than 3 
years

Total

            -                  8                  -                 -                -                       -                                  8 
            24              11                 84             103             73                  180                            475 
            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -   
            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -   

25.4 Trade Payables ageing as at March 31, 2023

Unbilled 
dues

Not due
Less than 1 

year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More Than 3 
years

Total

            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -   
            19              -              1,938             361              -                       -                           2,318 
            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -   
            -                -                    -                 -                -                       -                                 -   

iv) Disputed Dues - Others

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have
significant increase in credit risk

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired

v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have
significant increase in credit risk

vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired

Particulars

i) MSME
ii) Others
iii) Disputed Dues - MSME

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good

v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have
significant increase in credit risk
vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired

Trade Receivables ageing as at March 31, 2023

Particulars

i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered 
good

Particulars

i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered 
good

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have
significant increase in credit risk

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good

Particulars

i) MSME
ii) Others
iii) Disputed Dues - MSME
iv) Disputed Dues - Others
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

26 Significant Accounting policies & Notes to the financial statements

A Corporate Information

B Basis of preparation & Presentation of Financial Statements

a) Basis of Preparation 

b) Compliance with Ind AS

c) Functional & Presentation Currency

d) Use of Estimates

C

i) Property, Plant & Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment Useful Life of Asset ( In 
year)  as adopted 

Plant & Equipment 15 to 30
Vehicle 6 to 8
Office Equipment 5
Computer 3

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) (to
the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued there after.

Freehold Land is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Based on the technical experts assessment of useful life, certain items of property plant and equipment and motor vehicles are being depreciated
over useful lives different from the prescribed useful lives under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Management believes that such
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Significant accounting policies

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with these will flow to the company and the costs to the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated
by management. The useful life is as follows:

Rajnandini Metal Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India having its registered office at Plot
No. 344, Sector-3 Phase-II, IMT Bawal Rewari HR 123501 IN, India and is listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The
company engaged in the business of manufacturing, trading or otherwise deal in high-grade Copper Continuous Casting Rods and copper wires.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make adjustments, estimates and assumptions that
may impact the application of accounting policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expense and related disclosure concerning
the items involved as well as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis and revised if management became aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and critical judgment is disclosed in
notes to accounts.

These financial statements are prepared on going concern basis under the histoical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value or amortized cost at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction date. These financial statements comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (The Act), guidelines issued by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and accounting principles generally
accepted in India. All assets and Liabilities have been classified as Current and Non Current as per the Companies normal operating cycle. The
company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months based on the nature of the business.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the Company's functational and presentation currency and all financial values
are rounded to the nearest Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.
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ii)

iii) Revenue Recognition

Interest Income:
Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

Other Income:

iv) Inventories

v) Taxation

(a) Current Tax

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition. Depreciation on
sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss under 'Other
Income' or 'Other Expenses' as the case may be.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as
appropriate.

Impairment of Assets

Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating units
(CGU) to which the assets belongs . If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and
loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of asset.

Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognized for the 
assets no longer exists or have decreased.

(i) Inventories are valued on FIFO basis at lower of cost or estimated net realisable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at
cost or above cost.

(ii) Cost of Work in progress includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity.

(iii) Cost of finished goods and work in progress include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(iv) Scrap is valued at Net Realisable Value.

Current tax expense is recognized in statement of profit and loss based on current tax rate in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 
1961. 

Current income taxes are recognized under “income tax payable” net of payments on account, or under “tax receivables” where there is a credit 
balance.

Revenue arising from sale of products is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer under the terms of
contract and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Company.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government. Any retrospective revision in prices is accounted for in the year of such revision.

Any Other Income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account as and when accrued.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, 
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Sale of Products:
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(b) Deferred Tax

vi) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

vii) Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Assets 

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent Measurement : Non-derivative financial instruments
Financial assets carried at amortized cost (AC)

(ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Disclosure of contingencies as required by the Indian accounting standard  is furnished in the Notes on accounts.

Deferred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direct
in equity.

(i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Provisions are made when (a) the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events; (b) it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate is made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of reimbursement, unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in notes. Contingent
assets are not recognized. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and
is recognized as an asset. Information on contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to the financial statement. A contingent asset is disclosed
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

The company recognizes financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial
assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or
loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(b) Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement

Offsetting of Financial Liabilities

Derecognition of financial instruments

viii) Operating Cycle

ix) Borrowing Costs

x) Cash and cash equivalents

xi) Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method as per Ind AS 7 , whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from regular revenue generating, financing
and investing activities of the Company is segregated.  

(a) The Company presents its assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/noncurrent classification which is based upon the
Company's operating cycle. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b) An asset is treated as current when it is:
(i) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

(c) A liability is treated as current when :
(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii)  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings etc. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at
fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs, if any.

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized
from the company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of twelve
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of  cash and short-term deposits.



 

84 
 

 

 
  

xii) Earning Per Share

xiii) Segment Reporting

xiv) Fair Value Measurement

Basic earnings (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

Company is in the business of manufacturing of copper rods and copper wires. The company has single primary business segment and their is no
seprate reportable segment. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reass ssing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is material to fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares  outstanding  during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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RAJNANDINI METAL LIMITED
CIN No: L51109HR2010PLC040255
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

26.D Notes to Accounts

1 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category:

March 31, 2024
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total

Financial assets 
Trade receivables                            -                          -                           2,460                         2,460 
Cash and cash equivalents                            -                          -                                  8                                8 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents                            -                          -                                49                              49 
Other financial assets                            -                          -                                42                              42 
Total financial assets                            -                          -                           2,559                         2,559 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings                            -                          -                         10,042                       10,042 
Trade payables                            -                          -                              483                            483 
Total financial liabilities                            -                          -                         10,525                       10,525 

March 31, 2023
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total

Financial assets 
Trade receivables                            -                          -                           3,295                         3,295 
Cash and cash equivalents                            -                          -                                33                              33 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents                            -                          -                                47                              47 
Other financial assets                            -                          -                                47                              47 
Total financial assets                            -                          -                           3,422                         3,422 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings                            -                          -                           7,194                         7,194 
Trade payables                            -                          -                           2,318                         2,318 
Total financial liabilities                            -                          -                           9,512                         9,512 

(i)Fair Value Hierarchy

March 31, 2024
 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets 
Other financial assets                            -                          -                                42                              42 
Total financial assets                            -                          -                                42                              42 

March 31, 2023

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Financial assets 
Other financial assets                            -                          -                                47                              47 
Total financial assets                            -                          -                                47                              47 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining fair values of the financial instruments that are 
(a)recognised and measured at fair value and 
(b)measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified financial instruments into three levels 
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market ( for example traded bonds) is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable , the instrument is included in level 2
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.



 

86 
 

 

 
  

(iii)Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost

2 Financial risk management

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents
Credit ratings

Diversification of Bank Accounts

Credit risk Trade receivables Ageing analysis Part of daily business management

Credit risk Ageing analysis Credit limits

Market risk - Interest Rate risk
Sensitivity 
Analysis

Regularly assessing the market

Market risk - Commodity price risk
Sensitivity 
Analysis

Part of daily business management

Liquidity risk Maturity analysis Part of daily business management

a) Credit Risk

b) Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Loans - Variable Rates
Long Term Loan -                           118                           
Short Term Loan 9,249                        6,085                        
Total 9,249                        6,203                        

Impact on Interest Expenses for the year on 1% change in Interest rate

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Impact on P&L 92                             62                             
Total 92                             62                             

Commodity Price Risk

Inventories

The exposure of the company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:-

Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuation in prices of raw material. The company has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the
risk arising from the volatility in raw material prices and freight costs. The company’s commodity risk is managed centrally through well-established trading
operations and control processes. In accordance with the risk management policy, the Company carefully calibrates the timing and the quantity of
purchase.

As of March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023  the fair value of cash and bank balances, trade receivables,  other current financial assets,  trade payables and other 
current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short term nature of these instruments.
For other financial assets that are measured at amortised cost, the carrying amounts approximate the fair value.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty might not honor its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. The 
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily Trade Receivables).
Customer credit risk is managed in accordance with the Company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk
management. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
Credit risk is reduced to a significant extent if the projects(s) are funded by the Central and state Government and also by receiving pre-payments
(including mobilization advances) and achieving project completion milestone within the contracted delivery schedule. Outstanding customer receivables
are regularly monitored and assessed. The Company follows the simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.
Impairment, if any, is provided as per the respective credit risk of individual customer as on the reporting date.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk 
comprises three type of risks: Foreign exchange risk, Interest rate risk and other price risk.

The Company is exposed to risk due to interest rate fluctuation on long term borrowings. Such borrowings are based on fixed as well as floating interest
rate. Interest rate risk is determined by current market interest rates, projected debt servicing capability and view on future interest rate. The Company
mitigates this risk by regularly assessing the market scenario and finding appropriate fi nancial instruments like Interest Rate Swap.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls 
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 
Company's activities.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Borrowings, Trade payables, other financial liabilities

Borrowings
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c) Liquidity Risk

3 Capital Management

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Debt 9,421                        6,282                        
Less: Cash & Cash equivalents 8                               33                             
Net Debt 9,413                        6,250                        
Total Equity 5,671                        4,143                        
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 1.66                          1.51                          

4 Related party relationships, transactions and balances

a) Key management personnel Mr. Het Ram Managing Director
Mr. Manoj Kumar Jangir Chief Financial Officer, Director
Mr. Sanjeev Chauddha Independent Director
Mr. Arun Sharma Independent Director
Mr. Ashok Kalra Director
Mrs. Kavita Arora Director (resigned w.e.f. 30 Nov 2022)
Ms. Anjali Independent Director (appointed w.e.f. 25 Mar 2023)
Mr. Yogendra Kumar Sharma Company Secretary

Viraj Technology India Limited

HMS Metal Private Limited

b) Transactions with related parties :

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended March 

31, 2023
Remuneration Paid
Mr. Het Ram 84                       84                             
Mr. Ashok Kalra 31                       22                             
Mrs Kavita Rani -                     3                               
Mr. Manoj Kumar (Director) 13                       10                             

Purchase
Viraj Technology India Limited -                     195                           
HMS Metal Private Limited -                     9,916                        

Sales
Viraj Technology India Limited 9,496                  10,415                      

c) Outstanding balances arising from sale/purchase of goods and services 

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended March 

31, 2023
Trade Receivable
Viraj Technology India Limited 143                     674                           

Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to 
exercise significant influence
Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel or their 
relative are able to exercise significant influence

Liquidity risk arises from the Company’s inability to meet its cash flow commitments on time. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient stock of cash and marketable securities . The Company maintains adequate cash and cash equivalents along with the need based credit limits to
meet the liquidity needs.

The Company’s objective with respect to capital management is to ensure continuity of business while at the same time provide reasonable returns to its
various stakeholders. In order to achieve this, requirement of capital is reviewed periodically with reference to operating and business plans that take into
account capital expenditure and strategic investments. Sourcing of capital is done through judicious combination of equity/internal accruals and borrowings,
both short term and long term. Net debt (total borrowings less investments and cash and cash equivalents) to equity ratio is used to monitor capital.
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5 Commitments and Contingencies

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
5.1 Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
a) Bills discounted from Banks 643                           -                           
b) Disputed direct tax liabilities in respect of pending litigations before appellate authorities 46                             155                           

c) Disputed indirect tax liabilities 34                             -                           
Total contingent liabilities 723                           155                           

5.2 The various disputed tax litigations are as under :

Description
Disputed amount 
as at March 31, 

2024

Disputed amount as 
at March 31, 2023

a) Income Tax
Disallowances / additions made by
the income tax department.

46                          155                           

Notes:

The above amounts contain interest and penalty where included in the order issued by the department to the Company.

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
5.3 Commitments

283                           -                           

6 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Employer’s Contribution towards Provident Fund (PF) 23 16                             
Employer’s Contribution towards Employee State Insurance (ESI) 7 7                               
Employer’s Contribution towards Labour Welfare Fund (LWF) 2 1                               

32                             24                             

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
a) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation

Present value of Defined Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 31                             
Interest Expense 1                               
Current Service Cost 3                               
Benefit paid -                           
Remeasurement of (Gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income: -                           

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions -                           
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments -1                             

Present value of Defined Benefit obligation at year end 34                             
b)  Net defined benefit expense (recognised in the Statement of profit andloss for the year)

Interest Expense 1                               
Current Service Cost 3                               
Adjustment related to previous period 5                               
Net defined benefit expense debited to statement of profit and loss 9                               

The above figures are net of provisions made by the Company. The Company is contesting these demands and the management believe that its position is 
likely to be upheld in the appellate process. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect 
on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for
(Net of Advances amounting to ` 67 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Nil))

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 “Employee Benefits” (notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act) are given below :

Defined Benefit Plan
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of
service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service. The present value of obligation is determined
based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The following tables summaries the components of net benefit
expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

(Amount deposited under protest ` 110 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Nil), included in “Income Tax 
Assets” in note no. 23)

FY 2018-2019

Period to which relates

FY 2018-2019

Period to which relates



 

89 
 

 

 
  

c) Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
Mortality Rate IALM 2012-14
Discount rate (per annum) 7.25 % per annum
Salary Escalation 5.00 % per annum
Attrition Rate 5.00% p.a

d) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
Discount rate
Increase by 1% -9%
Decrease by 1% 11%
Salary Increase
Increase by 1% 11%
Decrease by 1% -10%
Attrition Rate
Increase by 1% 0%
Decrease by 1% 1%

e) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2024 
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1
Between 2 and 5 years 3
More than 5 years 30
Total expected payments 34                             

7 Dues to micro and small enterprises

 Particulars 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 

8                               -                           

0 -                           

44                             -                           

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year* 0 -                           

-                           -                           

*below rounding off norms

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the MSMED Act

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED 
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the 
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 ('MSMED Act'). Disclosures 
pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows :

Principal Amount Due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid 
as at year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and  remaining unpaid as at year 
end*

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed 
day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to supplier registered under the 
MSMED Act, beyond the appointment day during the year
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8 Corporate Social Responsibility 
1. As per Section 135 of the Companies Act , 2013 the following  expenses have been incurred by the company on CSR activities:

 Particulars 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act
- amount unspent for previous years -                           -                           
- for current year 28                             15                             
Amount spent during the year on
i) Construction/acquisition of an asset -                           -                           
ii) on purpose other than (i) above 28                             15                             

2. Details of CSR expenditure under 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects

Balance unspent as at
April 01, 2023

Amount required 
to be spent during 

the year

Amount spent 
during the year

-                                                       28                          28                       

Balance unspent as at
April 01, 2022

Amount required 
to be spent during 

the year

Amount spent 
during the year

-                                                       15                          15                       

3. Details of excess CSR expenditure under 135(5) of the Act

Balance excess spent as at
April 01, 2023

Amount spent 
during the year

Amount spent 
for previous 

years
-                                                       28                          -                     

Balance excess spent as at
April 01, 2022

Amount spent 
during the year

Amount spent 
for previous 

years
-                                                       15                          -                     

4. The Company does not have any provisions for Corporate social responsibility expenses.

5. The Company does not have any ongoing projects as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023.

9 Dividend

The amount of per share dividend recognised as distribution to equity shareholders in accordance with Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:

 Particulars 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 As at March 31, 

2023 
Interim dividend -                           1.00                          

Amount required to be spent 
during the year

Balance excess spent as at March 31, 
2023

28                                                 -                                                              

-                                                              15                                                 

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Companies are required to pay/distribute dividend after deducting applicable taxes. The 
remittance of dividends outside India is governed by Indian law on foreign exchange is also subject to witholding tax at applicable rates.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, on account of the interim dividend for fiscal 2023, the company has incurred a net cash outflow of INR 184.32 
Lakhs.

Amount deposited in specified 
fund of Schedule VII of the act 

within 6 months
Balance unspent as at March 31, 2024

-                                               -                                                              

Amount required to be spent 
during the year

Balance excess spent as at March 31, 
2024

Amount deposited in specified 
fund of Schedule VII of the act 

within 6 months
Balance unspent as at March 31, 2023

-                                               -                                                              
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10 Additonal Regulatory Information

10.1

NIL
10.2 There are no investment in properties
10.3 The Company has not revalued its Property,Plant and Equipment during the year.
10.4 The Company has not revalued its intangible assets during the year.
10.5

10.6

10.7

Amount as reported 
in quarterly 
statement

Amount of 
difference

(in lakhs) (in lakhs)

Jun-23 Inventory 72,55.49 70,65.50 1,89.99

Mar-24 Inventory 97,02.52 85.89.40 11,13.13

Sep-23 Inventory 82,74.09 90,76.55 -8,02.46

Dec-23 Inventory 98,39.89 1,14,45.63 -16,05.74

Jun-23 Trade receivables 24,34.96 28,51.00 -4,16.04

Sep-23 Trade receivables 49,45.40 54,53.65 -5,08.25

Dec-23 Trade receivables 18,28.78 27,87.19 -9,58.41

Mar-24 Trade receivables 24,59.82 26,22.19 -1,62.37

10.8 The Company is not declared a wilfull defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution or any other lender

10.9

10.10 No charges of satisfication are pending for registration with the Registrar of Companies (ROC)

Quarter
Particulars of 

Security

As per books of 
accounts (in 

lakhs)

Reason for material 
discrepancies

Title deeds of immovable properties not held in the name of Company. 
Details of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the leesee of and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of 
the leesee) whose deeds are not held in the name of the Company:

The Company had not granted any Loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined underCompanies Act, 2013,) either 
severally or jointly with any other person

No procedings have been initiated or pending against Company for holding any Benami Property under Prohibitions of Benami Transactions Act,1988 
(Earliers titled as Benami transactions (Prohibitions) Act,1988

The Company has no transaction with Companies which are stuck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,2013 or under section 530 of Companies 
Act,1956

The difference is
primarily due to some
clerical error while
determining amount of
Trade Receivables as
furnished before the
Banks. However, had
not been the committed 
such clerical error to
determine the amount
of Trade Receivables,
then also the company
was having sufficient
Drawing Power Limit
over the currently
sanctioned limit.

Primarily, due to non 
inclusion of Certain 
Items of inventory 
while furnishing the 
statement to the Bank, 
with the result that 
Inventory Statements 
submitted to the banks 
contained a lesser 
value than the actual 
inventory held.

The difference is
primarily due to some
clerical error while
determining amount of
Inventory as furnished
before the Banks.
However, had not been
the committed such
clerical error to
determine the amount
of Inventory, then also
the company was
having sufficient
Drawing Power Limit
over the currently
sanctioned limit.

The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with the banks in lieu of sanctioned working capital facilities, which are in agreement with the books 
of account other than those as set out below:
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10.11 Financial Ratios

Particulars Numerator Denominator
Year ended 31 Mar 

2024
Year ended 31 

Mar 2023
Change

Reason of Change (if 
more tha 25%)

Current Ratio (In times) Current Assets
Current 
liabilities

1.29                       1.20                    7.76% Not Applicable

Debt – Equity Ratio (In times) Total Debt Total equity 1.66                       1.51                    10.04% Not Applicable

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (In 
times)

EBITDA

Interest
& Lease
Payments
+ Principal
Repayments

0.32                       0.47                    -32.45%
Reduction in 
EBIDTA margin

Return on Equity (ROE) (In %)
Net Profit after 
Tax

Average 
Shareholder’s 
Equity

26.87% 33.03% -18.63% Not Applicable

Inventory Turnover Ratio
Cost of Goods 
Sold

Average 
Inventory

14.57                     18.43                  -20.95% Not Applicable

Trade receivables turnover ratio (In 
times)

Turnover
Average Trade 
Receivable

42.14                     32.71                  28.82%

Due to increase
in turnover as 
compared to trade
receivables

Trade payables turnover ratio (In 
times) 

Net Credit 
Purchases

Average Trade 
Payables

84.79                     42.05                  101.65%
Reduction in average 
creditor days

Net capital turnover ratio (In times) Net Sales
Working 
Capital

41.91                     59.63                  -29.72% Increase in inventory

Net profit ratio (In %)
Net Profit after 
Tax

Net Sales 1.26% 1.33% -5.49% Not Applicable

Return on capital employed (ROCE) 
(In %)

EBIT
Capital 
employed

18.31% 25.05% -26.93%
Reduction in 
EBIDTA margin

Return on Investment(ROI) (In %)*
 {MV(T1) –
MV(T0) – Sum
[C(t)]}

{MV(T0) +
Sum [W(t) *
C(t)]}

- - - Not Applicable

* Return on investment is NIL as no investments made by the company
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